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Carter’s is a $1.3 billion branded marketer of Carter’s and
OshKosh apparel for babies and young children. Selling on
average over 10 products for every child born in the U.S.,
Carter’s has the #1 share in the baby apparel market, and
OshKosh apparel for children ages 2-7 is known worldwide.
Consumers trust the quality of our baby apparel, sleepwear,
and playwear; products that are adorable, comfortable, easy
to care for, and very affordable.

a good year dollars in thousands, except EPS

2006(a)

2005(a)

as reported (b)
Net sales
Gross margin
Operating income
Operating margin
Net income
Diluted earnings per share
Net cash provided by operations

$1,343,467
36.4%
$ 165,111
12.3%
$
87,220
$
1.42
$
88,224

$1,121,358
35.3%
$ 121,246
10.8%
$ 47,202
$
0.78
$ 137,267

as adjusted (c)
Gross margin
Income before taxes
Operating margin
Net income
Diluted earnings per share

36.4%
$ 173,865
12.9%
$
92,694
$
1.51

36.7%
$ 145,708
13.0%
$ 74,305
$
1.22

Fiscal 2006 results include the operations of OshKosh for the entire fiscal year while fiscal 2005 results include the operations of
OshKosh for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
(b) Results “as reported” are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).
(c) Results “as adjusted” are non-GAAP financial measurements. See page 72 for a reconciliation of results “as reported” to results
“as adjusted” excluding certain costs related to the acquisition of OshKosh, debt refinancing, and facility closures.
(a)

CARTER’S PRINCIPLES
six simple principles we work and live by:
tell it like it is
trust the power of fewer things
keep every promise
live by higher standards
think horizontally
rely on the best talent
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THE NUMBERS
one. Carter’s has the #1 share in the baby
apparel market in the U.S. OshKosh is one of
the most recognized young children’s apparel
brands. We plan to keep it that way.

two. Having exceeded $1 billion in net sales,
we plan to reach $2 billion by 2011.
twenty. In 2006, sales grew 20% and adjusted
earnings grew 24%.
THE ISSUES
retail. We were disappointed with Carter’s 5%
sales growth. We changed too many things too
quickly, but believe we’ve identified the issues
and are taking the steps to get back on track.

OshKosh. We were overly optimistic and projected having better product in place for our
Fall 2006 line. Now in the process of correcting
our product positioning and pricing, we have
confidence in our Spring 2008 product line.
balance. Our diversified platform for growth
enabled us to achieve our sales and earnings objectives despite shortfalls in retail
and OshKosh.
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THE INDUSTRY
consolidation. As the apparel industry continues
to consolidate, fewer and better retailers
and suppliers remain. This benefits Carter’s,
since we are the largest branded marketer
of baby and young children’s apparel to the
largest retailers.

acceleration. The pace of change has never
been quicker, and in response, we’re introducing
new products and concepts more frequently
than ever.
THE CORE
top two brands. The one thing that defines
a great company is a great lifestyle brand,
and this company has two of the top brands
in baby and young children’s apparel.

promise and product. Every great brand is
half promise (what customers expect) and half
product (what they buy). We’ve never been
more focused on improving both.
THE TALENT
seasoned and strong. Our executive team
has worked together at Carter’s since the early
90’s. We trust, respect, and challenge each
other. As a result, we’re prepared to handle
the bumps in the road.

We had a good year in 2006; in many ways
our best. Still, it could have been better.

THE GOALS
8% to 10% top-line and 15% to 20% annual
earnings growth. On average, we have exceeded
these objectives since 1992. For 2007, we are
taking the time necessary to strengthen retail
and OshKosh.

strengthen our store model. We’ll continue
to focus on improving inventory planning
and management, and when it’s appropriate,
we’ll continue our brand store expansion.
market OshKosh product that we’re
proud of. Our wholesale customers have
seen continued improvement in the line,
but more work remains to be done.
earn an overall “A.”
In process.

Fred Rowan, Chairman and CEO

Joe Pacifico, President

Joe Pacifico and Fred Rowan
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Retail is a significant component
of Carter’s growth.

Carter’s retail
Between 2001 and 2006, we grew nearly $100 million in retail sales.
Last year, however, we changed too much, too quickly in our
stores, our inventory, and our management team. Some ideas
worked, some confused our consumers, and some were just not
a good use of time and effort.
It was still a valuable year.
We learned that:
• Baby is a gold mine (keep it up front)
• Complex product assortments don’t work (keep it simple)
• More frequent product introductions are better (keep it fresh)
• We can improve our store design (keep it inviting)
• We have new outlet players (keep it competitive)
• Leadership is critical (keep it disciplined)

BUILDING A BETTER MODEL

getting back to what we do best. In 2007, we plan to strengthen
our core outlet business and will continue to open brand stores
in non-outlet locations.
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With our integration of OshKosh nearly
complete, we are ready to grow this brand.

OshKosh
When we acquired OshKosh in July 2005, the product line was
complex and the brand had been diluted. While many OshKosh
retail stores were losing money, the wholesale business had
promise, but its product costs were too high.
For 2006, our major goals were to elevate the product proposition, expand the wholesale business, improve the retail stores,
and reduce costs. We underestimated the work to be done.
OshKosh is a turnaround story, similar to Carter’s in the early
90’s. We built Carter’s into a billion-dollar brand, and believe
that we can do the same with OshKosh.

BUILT-IN BRANDING

making OshKosh fun for kids and parents. For a 4-year-old who’s
just starting to read, few brand names are as much fun as OshKosh.
So we’ve found creative new ways to put the brand on our apparel
and in front of our consumers.

It’s rare to have the opportunity to own
two of the top brands in the industry.

brand equity
THERE’S NOTHING LITTLE ABOUT CARTER’S
Positive emotions are built into consumer relationships with Carter’s. Parents and grandparents connect our brand with the happiness and warmth of their experiences, and we will
continue to tap into that emotion and reaffirm their trust.
Consumer insights have led us to improve many things, from product (silky-soft cotton) to
packaging (simple and clear) to sizing (prominent and color-coded). We’ve also invested
in a new relationship marketing program to help bring us closer to our consumers.
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CARTER’S AND OSHKOSH
distinctly different. One is soft and emotional, the other is active and rugged. If you can’t tell
right away whether a child is wearing Carter’s or OshKosh, we’re not doing our job.

A CHILD’S WORK IS PLAY, AND THAT’S WHAT OSHKOSH IS ALL ABOUT
Sturdy, easy-care, and comfortable, OshKosh apparel is the denim overalls, cargo pants,
and hooded sweatshirts that kids choose and parents purchase.

OshKosh is one of the most recognized brands in the U.S. – and, as a result, one of our
largest opportunities.
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color & art
Daily essentials like tees, bodysuits, and blanket sleepers
generate nearly 80% of Carter’s sales from just 10 product
designs. We don’t change basic silhouettes, but we do
change the details – fabric, appliqués, embroidery, and
trim – which we call color & art.
In 2006, with a new single-brand look and renewed vigor,
we strengthened our position as a leader in color & art,
and now we freshen our product assortment as often as
every six weeks.
It’s not wrong to say that Carter’s is color & art. Frankly,
if we fail here – that is, if our products aren’t emotional –
nothing else matters.

When we lead in color &
art, we lead the industry.
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CARTER’S KEY PROCESSES

do it better, then repeat. For 2007, we identified our key
repeating processes and assigned action items and stewards
to each. Why? Because nothing improves by accident.

wholesale &
mass channel

WHOLESALE: AVERAGING 9% ANNUAL SALES GROWTH FOR 14 YEARS
Carter’s wholesale channel sales have increased more than 75% since 2001, and sales in 2006
were our highest ever.
Now that our two brands share the same supply chain, we’re in a position to improve our products,
inventory flow, and customer profitability while we continue to provide superior service.
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We’re working to be the single best
partner to each of our customers.

MASS CHANNEL: GROWING TO OVER $220 MILLION IN 6 YEARS
Mass channel sales have grown to more than 15% of our consolidated net sales since we
entered this channel in December of 2000.
Our two Carter’s sub-brands, Child of Mine for Wal-Mart and Just One Year for Target, and
our OshKosh sub-brand, Genuine Kids from OshKosh for Target, have become well-known
brands that provide significant value to consumers.
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talent
We believe that teams with the best talent win.
Our long track record of delivering solid financial
performance is driven by a broad and deep talent
base of employees.
“LIGHT THE NIGHT”: MAKING A DIFFERENCE

When we commit to what we believe is important, we
don’t do it in a small way. Last year, Carter’s assembled the
largest single team in the history of the “Light the Night”
walk, a nationwide event for The Leukemia & Lymphoma
Society. Together, over 630 Carter’s employees, families,
and friends helped raise over $200,000, a nationwide
record of giving.
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At Carter’s, if hard work can do it,
you can count on it getting done.

opportunity
Somewhere in the U.S., a baby was just born, and
chances are good that its mother and grandmother know and trust Carter’s. In the next
five years, that baby will grow in and out
of ten sizes of Carter’s – after which, of
course, there’s OshKosh.
Our business is relatively simple.
Our opportunity is immense.

Our balanced platform provides multiple
opportunities for growth in a $22 billion market.
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business and financial overview

The following table sets forth selected financial and other data as of and for the five fiscal years ended December 30,
2006 (fiscal 2006). On August 15, 2001, investment funds affiliated with Berkshire Partners LLC purchased control of
Carter’s, Inc. (the “Company”) from Investcorp S.A. (the “2001 Acquisition”), which had been our controlling stockholder since acquiring us in 1996. Financing for the 2001 Acquisition and related transactions totaled $468.2 million
and was provided by: the Company’s senior credit facility (“former senior credit facility”) including $24.0 million in
revolving loan facility borrowings and $125 million in term loan borrowings; $173.7 million from the sale by The
William Carter Company (“TWCC”) of 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Notes”); and $145.5 million of capital
invested by investment funds affiliated with Berkshire Partners LLC and other investors, which included rollover equity
by our management of $18.3 million.
On October 29, 2003, we completed an initial public offering of our common stock including the sale of 10,781,250
shares by us and 3,593,750 shares by the selling stockholders (adjusted for the June 6, 2006 stock split discussed
below). Net proceeds to us from the offering totaled $93.9 million. On November 28, 2003, we used approximately
$68.7 million of the proceeds to redeem approximately $61.3 million in outstanding Notes and pay a redemption
premium of approximately $6.7 million and related accrued interest charges of $0.7 million. We used approximately
$2.6 million of the net proceeds to terminate a management agreement with Berkshire Partners LLC and used
approximately $11.3 million to prepay amounts outstanding under the term loan as required by the former senior
credit facility. The remaining proceeds were used for working capital and other general corporate purposes.
On July 14, 2005, Carter’s, Inc., through TWCC, acquired all of the outstanding common stock of OshKosh B’Gosh, Inc.
for a purchase price of $312.1 million, which included payment for vested stock options (the “Acquisition”). As part
of financing the Acquisition, the Company refinanced its existing debt (the “Refinancing”), comprised of its former
senior credit facility and its Notes due 2011 (together with the Acquisition, the “Transaction”).
Financing for the Transaction was provided by a new $500 million term loan (the “Term Loan”) and a $125 million
revolving credit facility (including a sub-limit for letters of credit of $80 million, the “Revolver”) entered into by TWCC
with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, Credit Suisse, and certain other financial institutions (the “Senior
Credit Facility”).
The proceeds from the Refinancing were used to purchase the outstanding common stock and vested stock options
of OshKosh ($312.1 million), pay Transaction expenses ($6.2 million), refinance the Company’s former senior credit
facility ($36.2 million), repurchase the Company’s Notes ($113.8 million), pay a redemption premium on the Company’s
Notes ($14.0 million), along with accrued and unpaid interest ($5.1 million), and pay debt issuance costs ($10.6 million).
Other Transaction expenses paid prior and subsequent to the closing of the Transaction totaled $1.4 million, including
$0.2 million in debt issuance costs.
As a result of the Refinancing, we expensed $4.5 million in unamortized debt issuance costs related to the former
senior credit facility and Notes and expensed $0.5 million related to the debt discount on the Notes. Additionally, we
expensed approximately $1.1 million of debt issuance costs associated with the Senior Credit Facility in accordance
with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 96-19, “Debtor’s Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt
Instruments” (“EITF 96-19”).
On June 6, 2006, the Company effected a two-for-one stock split (the “stock split”) through a stock dividend to stockholders
of record as of May 23, 2006 of one share of our common stock for each share of common stock outstanding. Earnings per
share for all prior periods presented have been adjusted to reflect the stock split.
The selected financial data for the five fiscal years ended December 30, 2006 were derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements. Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday in December or January nearest to the last day of December.
Consistent with this policy, fiscal 2006 ended on December 30, 2006, fiscal 2005 ended on December 31, 2005, fiscal
2004 ended on January 1, 2005, fiscal 2003 ended on January 3, 2004, and fiscal 2002 ended on December 28, 2002.
Fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004, and fiscal 2002 each contained 52 weeks of financial results. Fiscal 2003 contained
53 weeks of financial results.
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The following table should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations beginning on page 20 and our consolidated financial statements beginning on page 40.
Fiscal years
dollars in thousands, except per share data

Operating data:
Wholesale sales
Retail sales
Mass channel sales
Total net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Closure costs (a)
Deferred charge write-off (b)
Management fee termination (c)
Royalty income
Operating income
Interest income
Loss on extinguishment of debt (d)
Interest expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Per common share data:
Basic net income
Diluted net income
Dividends
Basic weighted-average shares
Diluted weighted-average shares
Balance sheet data (end of period):
Working capital (e)
Total assets
Total debt, including current maturities
Stockholders’ equity
Cash flow data:
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities
Other data:
Gross margin
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

$ 560,987
562,153
220,327
1,343,467
854,970
488,497
352,459
91
–
–
(29,164)
165,111
(1,914)
–
28,837
138,188
50,968
$ 87,220

$ 486,750
456,581
178,027
1,121,358
725,086
396,272
288,624
6,828
–
–
(20,426)
121,246
(1,322)
20,137
24,564
77,867
30,665
$ 47,202

$385,810
291,362
145,949
823,121
525,082
298,039
208,756
620
–
–
(12,362)
101,025
(335)
–
18,852
82,508
32,850
$ 49,658

$356,888
263,206
83,732
703,826
448,540
255,286
188,028
1,041
–
2,602
(11,025)
74,640
(387)
9,455
26,646
38,926
15,648
$ 23,278

$301,993
253,751
23,803
579,547
352,151
227,396
174,110
150
923
–
(8,352)
60,565
(347)
–
28,648
32,264
13,011
$ 19,253

$
$

1.50
1.42
–
57,996,241
61,247,122

$
$

0.82
0.78
–
57,280,504
60,753,384

$
$

0.88
0.83
–
56,251,168
59,855,914

$
0.49
$
0.46
$
0.55
47,222,744
50,374,984

0.43
0.41
–
44,906,176
47,089,800

$ 265,904
1,123,191
345,032
495,491

$ 242,442
1,116,727
430,032
386,644

$185,968
672,965
184,502
327,933

$150,632
646,102
212,713
272,536

$131,085
643,349
297,622
179,359

$

88,224
(30,500)

$ 137,267
(308,403)

$ 42,676
(18,577)

$ 40,506
(16,472)

$ 27,304
(15,554)

(73,455)

222,147

(26,895)

(23,535)

(880)

36.2%
$ 19,536
20,481

36.3%
$ 22,216
17,347

$

36.4%
26,489
30,848

$

35.3%
21,912
22,588

$
$

39.2%
$ 18,693
18,009

(a)

The $1.0 million in closure costs in fiscal 2003 relate to the closure of our two sewing facilities located in Costa Rica. The $0.6 million in closure
costs in fiscal 2004 relate to costs associated with the closure of our Costa Rican facilities and our distribution facility in Leola, Pennsylvania. The
$6.8 million and $0.1 million in closure costs in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006 relate to the closure of our Mexican sewing facilities.

(b)

The deferred charge write-off in fiscal 2002 reflects the write-off of $0.9 million of previously deferred costs associated with the filing of a registration
statement on Form S-1 in August 2002, to register an initial public offering of our common stock.

(c)

The $2.6 million reflects the payment to terminate the Berkshire Partners LLC management agreement upon completion of our initial public offering
of our common stock on October 29, 2003.

(d)

Debt extinguishment charges in fiscal 2003 reflect the write-off of $2.4 million of debt issuance costs resulting from the redemption of $61.3 million
of our Notes and the prepayment of $11.3 million on our former senior credit facility, a debt redemption premium of approximately $6.7 million, and
a $0.4 million write-off of the related Note discount. Debt extinguishment charges in fiscal 2005 reflect the payment of a $14.0 million redemption
premium on our Notes, the write-off of $4.5 million in unamortized debt issuance costs related to the former senior credit facility and Notes, and
$0.5 million of the related Note discount. Additionally, we expensed approximately $1.1 million of debt issuance costs associated with our Senior
Credit Facility in accordance with EITF 96-19.

(e)

Represents total current assets less total current liabilities.
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management’s discussion and analysis
of financial condition and results of operations
The following is a discussion of our results of operations and current financial condition. You should read this discussion
in conjunction with our consolidated historical financial statements and notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
Our discussion of our results of operations and financial condition includes various forward-looking statements about our
markets, the demand for our products and services, and our future results. We based these statements on assumptions
that we consider reasonable. Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by our forward-looking statements
for various reasons including those discussed in the Risk Factors section of the Annual Report on Form 10-K. Those risk
factors expressly qualify all subsequent oral and written forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting
on our behalf. Except for any ongoing obligations to disclose material information as required by the federal securities
laws, we do not have any intention or obligation to update forward-looking statements after we file this Annual Report.

overview
Over the past 142 years, Carter’s has become one of the most highly recognized and most trusted brand names in the
children’s apparel industry. On July 14, 2005, we acquired OshKosh for a purchase price of $312.1 million, which included
payment for vested stock options. Results of operations for fiscal 2006 include the operations of OshKosh for the entire
period. Results of operations for fiscal 2005 include the operations of OshKosh for the period from July 14, 2005 through
December 31, 2005.
We sell our products under our Carter’s and OshKosh brands in the wholesale channel, which includes approximately
380 department store, national chain, and specialty store accounts. Additionally, as of December 30, 2006, we operated
219 Carter’s and 157 OshKosh retail stores located primarily in outlet and strip centers throughout the United States
and sold our products in the mass channel under our Child of Mine brand to approximately 3,474 Wal-Mart stores
nationwide and under our Just One Year brand to approximately 1,487 Target stores. We also extend our brand reach
by licensing our Carter’s, Child of Mine, Just One Year, OshKosh, and related brand names through domestic licensing
arrangements, including licensing of our Genuine Kids from OshKosh brand to Target stores nationwide. Our
OshKosh B’Gosh brand name is also licensed through international licensing arrangements. During fiscal 2006, we
earned approximately $29.2 million in royalty income from these arrangements, including $14.1 million from our
OshKosh B’Gosh and Genuine Kids from OshKosh brands.
We have made significant progress integrating the OshKosh business. Our plans are to grow our OshKosh brand by
focusing on our core product development and marketing disciplines, leveraging our relationships with major wholesale
accounts, leveraging our infrastructure and supply chain, and improving the productivity of our OshKosh retail stores.
Since the Acquisition, we have reduced the number of OshKosh sub-brands and have simplified the number of product
offerings under our OshKosh brand. This has allowed us to reduce product complexity, focus our efforts on essential,
core products, and streamline operations. Since the Acquisition, we have closed 15 unprofitable OshKosh lifestyle
stores in fiscal 2005, 14 OshKosh retail stores in fiscal 2005, and closed two additional OshKosh retail stores in fiscal 2006.
We are also leveraging our existing infrastructure and supply chain expertise to reduce costs. In December 2005, we
closed the OshKosh Choloma, Honduras sewing facility and in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 we closed the OshKosh
Uman, Mexico sewing facility. We have placed such production primarily with our vendors in the Far East. We have
also integrated retail store operations and various other support functions throughout the Company.
As part of financing the Acquisition, we refinanced our existing debt, including our former senior credit facility and
our outstanding Notes due 2011. In connection with the Refinancing, we paid a $14.0 million redemption premium
on the Notes, expensed $4.5 million in unamortized debt issuance costs related to the former senior credit facility and
repayment of the Notes, and expensed $0.5 million related to the debt discount on the Notes. Additionally, we expensed
approximately $1.1 million of debt issuance costs associated with our Senior Credit Facility in accordance with EITF 96-19.
As a result of the Transaction, we have had a significant increase in interest costs. Prior to the Transaction, for the period
from January 2, 2005 through July 14, 2005, we had average borrowings of $169.1 million at an effective interest rate
of 9.9% as compared to average borrowings of $472.7 million at an effective interest rate of 5.9% subsequent to the
Transaction from July 15, 2005 through December 31, 2005. In fiscal 2006, we had average borrowings of $397.9 million
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continued

at an effective interest rate of 7.25%. Additionally, we have acquired certain definite-lived intangible assets in connection
with the Acquisition of OshKosh comprised of licensing agreements and leasehold interests which resulted in annual
amortization expense of $4.7 million in fiscal 2006. Amortization expense related to these intangible assets will be
$4.4 million in fiscal 2007, $4.1 million in fiscal 2008, $3.7 million in fiscal 2009, and $1.8 million in fiscal 2010.
In connection with the Acquisition of OshKosh, we recorded cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired of
$143.2 million and an OshKosh brand tradename asset of $102.0 million. The carrying value of these assets is subject
to annual impairment reviews as of the last day of each fiscal year or more frequently if deemed necessary due to any
significant events or changes in circumstances. Estimated future cash flows used in such impairment reviews could be
negatively impacted if we do not achieve our sales growth plans, planned cost savings, and other assumptions that
support the carrying value of these intangible assets, which could result in potential impairment of such assets.
Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), which resulted in a reduction in fiscal 2006 net
income of approximately $2.4 million, or approximately $0.04 per diluted share. The impact of adopting SFAS 123R
is discussed in Note 7 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements. For the fiscal year ending
December 29, 2007, SFAS 123R is expected to result in a reduction in net income of approximately $2.8 million,
or $0.05 per basic earnings per share and $0.04 per diluted earnings per share.
Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday, in December or January, nearest the last day of December. Consistent with this
policy, fiscal 2006 ended on December 30, 2006, fiscal 2005 ended on December 31, 2005, and fiscal 2004 ended
on January 1, 2005. Each of these periods contained 52 weeks of financial results.

results of operations
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated (i) selected statement of operations data expressed as a
percentage of net sales and (ii) the number of retail stores open at the end of each period:
Fiscal years
2006

2005

2004

Wholesale sales:
Carter’s
OshKosh
Total wholesale sales

34.6%
7.2
41.8

38.1%
5.3
43.4

46.9%
–
46.9

Retail store sales:
Carter’s
OshKosh
Total retail store sales

24.8
17.0
41.8

28.2
12.5
40.7

35.4
–
35.4

16.4
100.0
63.6
36.4
26.2
–
(2.1)
12.3
–
2.0
10.3
3.8
6.5%

15.9
100.0
64.7
35.3
25.7
0.6
(1.8)
10.8
1.8
2.1
6.9
2.7
4.2%

17.7
100.0
63.8
36.2
25.3
0.1
(1.5)
12.3
–
2.3
10.0
4.0
6.0%

219
157
376

193
142
335

180
–
180

Mass channel sales
Consolidated net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Closure costs
Royalty income
Operating income
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Number of retail stores at end of period:
Carter’s
OshKosh
Total
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continued

fiscal year ended december 30, 2006 compared
with fiscal year ended december 31, 2005
consolidated net sales
Consolidated net sales for fiscal 2006 were $1.3 billion, an increase of $222.1 million, or 19.8%, compared to $1.1 billion
in fiscal 2005. This increase reflects growth in all channels of distribution and includes $325.5 million in net sales from
our OshKosh brand in fiscal 2006 and $199.8 million in net sales from our OshKosh brand during the period from
July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

December 30,
2006

% of
Total

December 31,
2005

% of
Total

Net sales:
Wholesale – Carter’s
Wholesale – OshKosh
Retail – Carter’s
Retail – OshKosh
Mass channel – Carter’s
Total net sales

$ 464,636
96,351
333,050
229,103
220,327
$1,343,467

34.6%
7.2%
24.8%
17.0%
16.4%
100.0%

$ 427,043
59,707
316,477
140,104
178,027
$1,121,358

38.1%
5.3%
28.2%
12.5%
15.9%
100.0%

Carter’s wholesale sales
Carter’s brand wholesale sales increased $37.6 million in fiscal 2006, or 8.8%, to $464.6 million. Excluding off-price
sales, Carter’s brand wholesale sales increased $37.7 million in fiscal 2006, or 9.5%, to $432.2 million. The increase in
Carter’s brand wholesale sales, excluding off-price sales, was driven by an 11% increase in units shipped, offset by a
1% decrease in average price per unit as compared to fiscal 2005.
The growth in units shipped was driven primarily by our baby product category, which accounted for approximately
54% of total Carter’s brand wholesale units shipped in fiscal 2006. The growth in baby units shipped was driven by
our focus on high-volume, essential core products.
The decrease in average price per unit as compared to fiscal 2005 was due primarily to our playclothes product category which
accounted for 27% of our Carter’s brand wholesale units shipped. Playclothes average prices were down 2% as compared
to fiscal 2005 due to product mix. Favorable product mix in our sleepwear category, with average prices up 1% and which
accounted for 19% of our Carter’s brand wholesale units shipped in fiscal 2006, partially offset the decline in average price
per unit in playclothes. Average price per unit in our baby product category was flat as compared to fiscal 2005.
Off-price sales were flat in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005. Off-price units shipped increased 1% as compared to
fiscal 2005 and average price per unit decreased 1%.

OshKosh wholesale sales
Results for fiscal 2006 include OshKosh brand wholesale sales for the entire year and are not comparable to results
for fiscal 2005 which include OshKosh brand wholesale sales from the Acquisition date of July 14, 2005 through
December 31, 2005.

OshKosh brand wholesale sales were $96.4 million in fiscal 2006, including $7.5 million in off-price sales, and
$59.7 million for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005, including $10.5 million in off-price sales.
Since the Acquisition, we have reduced the number of OshKosh wholesale brands from three brands to one brand
(OshKosh), significantly reduced the number of styles in order to improve productivity, and exited unprofitable and
marginally profitable customer relationships.

mass channel sales
Mass channel sales increased $42.3 million in fiscal 2006, or 23.8%, to $220.3 million. The increase was driven by
increased sales of $23.6 million, or 21.2%, of our Child of Mine brand to Wal-Mart and increased sales of $18.7 million,
or 28.1%, of our Just One Year brand to Target. The growth in sales resulted from increased productivity, additional
floor space in existing stores, and new door growth.
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Carter’s retail stores
Carter’s retail stores sales increased $16.6 million in fiscal 2006, or 5.2%, to $333.1 million. Such growth was driven by
incremental sales of $23.1 million generated by new store openings offset by the impact of store closures of $6.3 million
and a comparable store sales decrease of $0.2 million, or (0.1%), based on 180 locations. On a comparable store
basis, transactions and units per transaction were flat and average prices decreased 0.4% as compared to fiscal 2005.
Average prices decreased due to increased promotional pricing on spring and fall playclothes. In fiscal 2006, the Company
significantly changed the mix of and reduced the levels of inventory in its retail stores, which negatively impacted retail
store performance. Average inventory levels, on a comparable store basis, were down 10.1% as compared to fiscal 2005.
The Company believes it is taking the steps necessary to improve the level and mix of inventory in its retail stores.
The Company’s comparable store sales calculations include sales for all stores that were open during the comparable
fiscal period, including remodeled stores and certain relocated stores. If a store relocates within the same center with
no business interruption or material change in square footage, the sales for such store will continue to be included in
the comparable store calculation. If a store relocates to another center or there is a material change in square footage,
such store is treated as a new store. Stores that are closed are included in the comparable store sales calculation up
to the date of closing.
There were a total of 219 Carter’s retail stores as of December 30, 2006. During fiscal 2006, we opened 31 stores and
closed five stores. We plan to open ten stores during fiscal 2007.

OshKosh retail stores
Results for fiscal 2006 include OshKosh retail store sales for the entire year and are not comparable to results for fiscal
2005 which include OshKosh retail store sales from the Acquisition date of July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
OshKosh retail store sales contributed $229.1 million in fiscal 2006 and $140.1 million in net sales for the period from
July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005. During fiscal 2006, we opened 17 stores and closed 2 stores. During the
period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005, we closed 29 OshKosh retail stores, including 15 OshKosh
lifestyle stores.
There were a total of 157 OshKosh retail stores as of December 30, 2006. We plan to open five OshKosh retail stores
during fiscal 2007.

gross profit
Our gross profit increased $92.2 million, or 23.3%, to $488.5 million in fiscal 2006. Gross profit as a percentage of net
sales was 36.4% in fiscal 2006 as compared to 35.3% in fiscal 2005.
The increase in gross profit as a percentage of net sales reflects:
(i)

an amortization charge in fiscal 2005 of $13.9 million related to a fair value step-up of inventory acquired from
OshKosh and sold during the period; and

(ii) $1.6 million of accelerated depreciation recorded in fiscal 2005 in connection with the closure of two Carter’s
brand sewing facilities in Mexico.
Partially offsetting this increase was:
(i)

growth in our lower margin mass channel business, sales from which increased 23.8% in fiscal 2006;

(ii) a reduction in our consolidated retail store gross margin due to increased promotional activity (consolidated
retail gross margin decreased from 52.0% of consolidated retail store sales in fiscal 2005 to 51.1% of consolidated retail store sales in fiscal 2006); and
(iii) a greater mix of OshKosh brand wholesale sales which generally have lower margins relative to Carter’s brand
wholesale sales.
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The Company includes distribution costs in its selling, general, and administrative expenses. Accordingly, the Company’s
gross margin may not be comparable to other companies that include such distribution costs in their cost of goods sold.

selling, general, and administrative expenses
Selling, general, and administrative expenses in fiscal 2006 increased $63.8 million, or 22.1%, to $352.5 million. As a
percentage of net sales, selling, general, and administrative expenses in fiscal 2006 increased to 26.2% as compared
to 25.7% in fiscal 2005.
The increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales was led primarily by:
(i)

retail store sales increasing to 41.8% of our consolidated sales mix from 40.7% last year due to the Acquisition
of OshKosh. Our retail stores have a higher selling, general, and administrative cost structure than other
components of our business and our OshKosh retail stores generally have a higher cost structure than our
Carter’s retail stores. Additionally, in fiscal 2006, we opened 29 brand stores which have a higher cost structure
and lower sales volume than our outlet stores. As a result, our retail store selling, general, and administrative
expenses increased to 26.7% of consolidated retail store sales compared to 23.5% last year;

(ii) growth in our retail store administration expenses from 3.4% of retail store sales in fiscal 2005 to 4.1% in
fiscal 2006 due to expansion of the retail management team;
(iii) incremental stock-based compensation expense of $3.9 million resulting from the adoption of SFAS 123R as
further discussed in Note 7 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements; and
(iv) incremental amortization of OshKosh intangible assets related to OshKosh licensing agreements and leasehold
interests capitalized in connection with the Acquisition ($4.7 million in fiscal 2006 as compared to $2.2 million
in fiscal 2005).
Partially offsetting these increases were:
(i)

a reduction in incentive compensation of $3.0 million as compared to fiscal 2005; and

(ii) a decline in distribution and freight costs as a percentage of sales from 5.6% in fiscal 2005 to 5.3% in fiscal 2006.

closure costs
In May 2005, we decided to exit two Carter’s brand sewing facilities in Mexico. We have developed alternative capabilities
to source comparable products in the Far East at lower costs. As a result of these closures, we recorded total costs
of $8.4 million, including $4.6 million of severance charges, $1.3 million of lease termination costs, $1.6 million of
accelerated depreciation (included in cost of goods sold), $0.1 million of asset impairment charges, and $0.8 million
of other exit costs during fiscal 2005.
During fiscal 2006, we recorded $91,000 in closure costs which included $74,000 in severance charges and $17,000 in
other exit costs related to the closures.

royalty income
Our royalty income increased $8.7 million, or 42.8%, to $29.2 million in fiscal 2006.
We license the use of our Carter’s, Just One Year, and Child of Mine brands. Royalty income from these brands was
approximately $15.1 million in fiscal 2006, an increase of 8.9%, or $1.3 million, as compared to fiscal 2005 due to
increased sales by our Carter’s and Child of Mine brand licensees.
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We license the use of our OshKosh and Genuine Kids from OshKosh brand names. Results for fiscal 2006 include a
full year of royalty income from these brands and are not comparable to results for fiscal 2005 which include licensee
sales from the Acquisition date of July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005. Royalty income from these brands was
approximately $14.1 million in fiscal 2006, including $6.8 million in international royalty income, and $6.6 million for
the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005, including $2.6 million in international royalty income.

operating income
Operating income increased $43.9 million, or 36.2%, to $165.1 million in fiscal 2006. The increase in operating income
was due to the factors described above.

loss on extinguishment of debt
As a result of the Refinancing in fiscal 2005, we incurred a $14.0 million redemption premium in connection with the
repurchase of our Notes, expensed $4.5 million in debt issuance costs associated with our former senior credit facility
and Notes, expensed $0.5 million related to the debt discount on the Notes, and wrote off $1.1 million in debt
issuance costs associated with our new Senior Credit Facility in accordance with EITF 96-19.

interest expense, net
Interest expense in fiscal 2006 increased $3.7 million, or 15.8%, to $26.9 million. This increase is attributable to the
impact of additional borrowings associated with the Transaction. In fiscal 2006, weighted-average borrowings were
$397.9 million at an effective interest rate of 7.25% as compared to weighted-average borrowings of $320.6 million
at an effective interest rate of 7.66% in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2006, we reclassified approximately $1.3 million related to
our interest rate swap agreement into earnings, which effectively reduced our interest expense under the Term Loan.

income taxes
Our effective tax rate was approximately 36.9% in fiscal 2006 as compared to approximately 39.4% in fiscal 2005. Our
effective tax rate decreased in fiscal 2006 due primarily to lower state taxable income. See Note 9 to the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements for a reconciliation of the statutory rate to our effective tax rate.

net income
Our fiscal 2006 net income increased $40.0 million to $87.2 million as compared to $47.2 million in fiscal 2005 as a
result of the factors described above.

fiscal year ended december 31, 2005 compared
with fiscal year ended january 1, 2005
consolidated net sales
Consolidated net sales for fiscal 2005 were $1.1 billion, an increase of $298.2 million, or 36.2%, compared to
$823.1 million in fiscal 2004. This increase reflects growth in all channels of distribution and includes $199.8 million
in net sales from OshKosh during the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

December 31,
2005

Net sales:
Wholesale – Carter’s
Wholesale – OshKosh
Retail – Carter’s
Retail – OshKosh
Mass channel – Carter’s
Total net sales

$ 427,043
59,707
316,477
140,104
178,027
$1,121,358

% of
Total

38.1%
5.3%
28.2%
12.5%
15.9%
100.0%

January 1,
2005

$385,810
–
291,362
–
145,949
$823,121

% of
Total

46.9%
–
35.4%
–
17.7%
100.0%
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Carter’s wholesale sales
Carter’s brand wholesale sales increased $41.2 million in fiscal 2005, or 10.7%, to $427.0 million. Excluding off-price
sales, Carter’s brand wholesale sales increased $28.7 million in fiscal 2005, or 7.8%, to $394.5 million. The increase in
Carter’s brand wholesale sales, excluding off-price sales, was driven by a 3% increase in units shipped and a 5% increase
in average price per unit as compared to fiscal 2004.
Growth in units shipped was driven primarily by our playclothes product category, which accounted for approximately
30% of total Carter’s brand wholesale units shipped in fiscal 2005.
The increase in average price per unit as compared to fiscal 2004 was driven primarily by growth in our playclothes
product category. In addition, favorable product mix in our sleepwear category, which accounted for 20% of our
Carter’s brand wholesale units shipped in fiscal 2005, also contributed to the increase in average price per unit. Our
playclothes and sleepwear product categories both carry a higher average price per unit than our baby product category.
Off-price sales increased $12.6 million in fiscal 2005, or 63.0%, to $32.5 million. Off-price units shipped were up 93%
as compared to fiscal 2004 and average price per unit was down 16%. The increase in off-price units shipped reflects
the disposal of a larger percentage of our excess inventory through the off-price channel rather than selling such
excess in our retail stores.

OshKosh wholesale sales
OshKosh brand wholesale sales were $59.7 million for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005,
including $10.5 million in off-price sales. As the Acquisition was completed on July 14, 2005, all sales from OshKosh
brand products are incremental to our results. Since the Acquisition, we have reduced the number of OshKosh wholesale
brands from three brands to one brand (OshKosh), significantly reduced the number of styles in order to improve
productivity, and exited unprofitable and marginally profitable customer relationships.

mass channel sales
Mass channel sales increased $32.1 million in fiscal 2005, or 22.0%, to $178.0 million. The increase was driven by increased
sales of $23.4 million, or 26.6%, of our Child of Mine brand to Wal-Mart and increased sales of $8.6 million, or 14.9%,
of our Just One Year brand to Target. The increase in sales resulted primarily from selling products at more Wal-Mart
and Target stores, additional floor space at both Wal-Mart and Target, and $8.5 million from new product introductions.

Carter’s retail stores
Carter’s retail stores sales increased $25.1 million in fiscal 2005, or 8.6%, to $316.5 million. Such growth was driven
by incremental sales of $12.2 million generated by new store openings and a comparable store sales increase of
$13.8 million, or 4.8%, based on 174 locations. This growth was partially offset by the impact of four store closures
of $0.9 million.
The increase in comparable store sales was led by a comparable store sales increase of 10.7% in our brand stores.
As of December 31, 2005, we had 41 brand stores as compared to 27 stores as of January 1, 2005. Our “drive to”
outlet stores, of which there were 71 as of December 31, 2005, had a comparable store sales increase of 2.8% and
were impacted by rising fuel prices as these locations are generally located within 20 to 30 minutes outside of densely
populated areas. Across the chain, comparable store sales have been driven by converting all stores to our new format
beginning May of 2004, including moving baby products to the front of the store, more impactful window displays, and
more effective in-store merchandising and marketing. All stores were converted to the new store format as of April 2005.
There were a total of 193 Carter’s retail stores as of December 31, 2005. During fiscal 2005, we opened 17 stores and
closed 4 stores.
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OshKosh retail stores
OshKosh retail store sales contributed $140.1 million in net sales from the period from July 14, 2005 through
December 31, 2005. During the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005, we closed 29 OshKosh retail
stores, including 15 OshKosh lifestyle stores. Liabilities for these store closures have been provided for in purchase
accounting as described in Note 16 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements.
There were a total of 142 OshKosh retail stores as of December 31, 2005.

gross profit
Our gross profit increased $98.2 million, or 33.0%, to $396.3 million in fiscal 2005. Gross profit as a percentage of net
sales was 35.3% in fiscal 2005 as compared to 36.2% in fiscal 2004.
The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of net sales reflects:
(i)

an amortization charge of $13.9 million related to a fair value step-up of inventory acquired from OshKosh and
sold during the period;

(ii) growth in our lower margin mass channel business;
(iii) the impact of lower margin OshKosh brand wholesale sales relative to Carter’s brand wholesale sales; and
(iv) $1.6 million of accelerated depreciation recorded in connection with our decision to close two sewing facilities
in Mexico.
Partially offsetting these decreases were:
(i)

a reduction in product costs resulting from leveraging our full-package sourcing network and completing the
transition of Carter’s brand products to full-package sourcing;

(ii) significant growth in our higher margin retail business, resulting from the Acquisition of the OshKosh retail
stores (consolidated retail sales increased from 35% of total sales to 41% of total sales); and
(iii) a decrease of $2.5 million in charges related to excess inventory.
The Company includes distribution costs in its selling, general, and administrative expenses. Accordingly, the Company’s
gross margin may not be comparable to other companies that include such distribution costs in their cost of goods sold.

selling, general, and administrative expenses
Selling, general, and administrative expenses in fiscal 2005 increased $79.9 million, or 38.3%, to $288.6 million. As a
percentage of net sales, selling, general, and administrative expenses in fiscal 2005 increased to 25.7% as compared
to 25.3% in fiscal 2004.
The increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales was led primarily by:
(i)

the impact of a higher retail store cost structure at OshKosh as retail store selling, general, and administrative
expenses, which comprise approximately 39% of consolidated selling, general, and administrative expenses,
grew from 23.6% of retail sales in fiscal 2004 to 24.8% of retail sales in fiscal 2005; and

(ii) amortization of OshKosh intangible assets including a charge of $2.2 million related to the OshKosh licensing
agreements and leasehold interests capitalized in connection with the Acquisition.
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Partially offsetting these increases were:
(i)

a decline in distribution costs as a percentage of sales from 4.9% in fiscal 2004 to 4.2% in fiscal 2005, driven
primarily by efficiencies gained with our distribution center in Stockbridge, Georgia;

(ii) effectively managing growth in spending to a rate lower than the growth in net sales, most notably in the
mass channel; and
(iii) cessation of amortization of our Carter’s licensing agreements, which were fully amortized on August 15, 2004.
Amortization expense in fiscal 2004 related to these agreements was approximately $3.1 million.

closure costs
In May 2005, we decided to exit two Carter’s brand sewing facilities in Mexico. We have developed alternative capabilities
to source comparable products in the Far East at lower costs. As a result of these closures, we have recorded total costs
of $8.4 million, including $4.6 million of severance charges, $1.3 million of lease termination costs, $1.6 million of
accelerated depreciation (included in cost of goods sold), $0.1 million of asset impairment charges, and $0.8 million
of other exit costs during fiscal 2005.

royalty income
Our royalty income increased $8.1 million, or 65.2%, to $20.4 million in fiscal 2005.
We license the use of our Carter’s, Carter’s Classics, Just One Year, and Child of Mine names. Royalty income from
these brands was approximately $13.8 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of 11.8%, or $1.5 million, as compared to
fiscal 2004. This increase was driven primarily by increased sales of our Carter’s and Just One Year brand licensees.
As a result of the Acquisition, as discussed in Note 1 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements,
we license the use of our OshKosh and Genuine Kids from OshKosh brand names. Royalty income from these brands
was approximately $6.6 million for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005, including $2.6 million in
international royalty income.

operating income
Operating income increased $20.2 million, or 20.0%, to $121.2 million in fiscal 2005. The increase in operating income
was due to the factors described above.

loss on extinguishment of debt
As a result of the Refinancing, we incurred a $14.0 million redemption premium in connection with the repurchase
of our Notes, wrote off $4.5 million in debt issuance costs associated with our former senior credit facility and Notes,
expensed $0.5 million related to the debt discount on the Notes, and wrote off $1.1 million in new debt issuance costs
associated with our Senior Credit Facility in accordance with EITF 96-19.

interest expense, net
Interest expense in fiscal 2005 increased $4.7 million, or 25.5%, to $23.2 million. This increase is attributable to the
impact of additional borrowings associated with the Transaction as described in Note 1 to the accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements. Weighted-average borrowings in fiscal 2005 prior to the Transaction were $169.1 million
at an effective interest rate of 9.9%. Subsequent to the Transaction, weighted-average borrowings were $472.7 million at an
effective interest rate of 5.9%. In fiscal 2004, weighted-average borrowings were $204.6 million at an effective interest
rate of 8.6%.
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income taxes
Our effective tax rate was 39.4% in fiscal 2005 and 39.8% in fiscal 2004. Our effective tax rate was slightly higher in fiscal
2004 due primarily to the impact of certain non-deductible costs. See Note 9 to the accompanying audited consolidated
financial statements for the reconciliation of the statutory rate to our effective tax rate.

net income
Our fiscal 2005 net income decreased $2.5 million to $47.2 million as compared to $49.7 million in fiscal 2004 as a
result of the factors described above.

liquidity and capital resources
Our primary cash needs are working capital, capital expenditures, and debt service. Our primary source of liquidity will
be cash flow from operations and borrowings under our new Revolver, and we expect that these sources will fund our
ongoing requirements for working capital, debt service, and capital expenditures. These sources of liquidity may be
impacted by continued demand for our products and our ability to meet debt covenants under our Senior Credit
Facility, described below.
Net accounts receivable at December 30, 2006 were $110.6 million compared to $96.1 million at December 31, 2005.
This increase reflects higher levels of wholesale and mass channel revenue in the latter part of fiscal 2006 as compared
to the latter part of fiscal 2005.
Inventory levels at December 30, 2006 were $193.6 million compared to $188.5 million at December 31, 2005. This
increase was driven by an increase in finished goods inventory to support forecasted demand, partially offset by the
impact of lower levels of inventory in our retail stores, lower levels of excess inventory, and a decline in work in progress
and raw material inventory due to the closure of our OshKosh brand sewing facility located in Uman, Mexico during
the first quarter of fiscal 2006.
Net cash provided by operating activities during fiscal 2006 was $88.2 million compared to $137.3 million in fiscal
2005. Operating cash flow in fiscal 2006 is not comparable to fiscal 2005 due to the timing of the Acquisition on
July 14, 2005, a point in the year when OshKosh’s working capital was at its peak. Additionally, in fiscal 2006, the
Company had significant reductions in current liabilities resulting from the payment of Acquisition-related liabilities
and a change in classification of the income tax benefit from the exercise of stock options resulting from the adoption of
SFAS 123R as described in Note 7 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements. Net cash provided
by our operating activities in fiscal 2004 was approximately $42.7 million. The increase in net cash flow provided by
operating activities in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 was driven by the growth in earnings, adjusted for non-cash
charges related to the Transaction, increase in accounts payable and other current liabilities, and reductions in OshKosh
brand inventory since the date of the Acquisition.
We invested $30.8 million in capital expenditures during fiscal 2006 compared to $22.6 million in fiscal 2005. Major
investments include retail store openings and remodelings and investments in information technology. We plan to
invest $35 million to $40 million in capital expenditures in fiscal 2007.
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In connection with the Acquisition, we developed an integration plan including costs related to severance and relocation,
facility and store closings, and contract terminations. The following liabilities, included in other current liabilities in the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statements, were established at the closing of the Acquisition. Remaining
payments will be funded by cash flow from operations and borrowings under our new Revolver and are expected to
be paid in fiscal 2007:

dollars in thousands

Severance

Other
exit
costs

Balance at July 14, 2005
Payments
Adjustments to cost in excess of
fair value of net assets acquired
Balance at December 31, 2005
Payments
Adjustments to cost in excess of
fair value of net assets acquired
Balance at December 30, 2006

$ 9,840
(2,304)

$ 2,075
(71)

$ 7,020
(468)

$2,000
(934)

$ 20,935
(3,777)

673
8,209
(5,294)

(78)
1,926
(1,377)

–
6,552
(4,999)

(168)
898
(399)

427
17,585
(12,069)

170
719

180
$ 1,733

(299)
$ 200

(729)
$ 4,787

(780)
$ 2,135

$

Lease
termination
costs

Contract
termination
costs

Total

Also in connection with the Acquisition, we refinanced our former senior credit facility, which consisted of a $36.2 million
Term Loan and an available $80 million revolving loan facility under which no borrowings were outstanding, exclusive
of outstanding letters of credit, and we repurchased our Notes at a price that included a redemption premium of
$14.0 million in addition to the principal amount of $113.8 million. As a result of the Refinancing, we expensed
$4.5 million in debt issuance costs related to the former senior credit facility and the Notes and expensed $0.5 million
related to the debt discount on the Notes.
Financing for the Transaction was provided by a new $500 million Term Loan and a $125 million revolving credit facility
(including a sub-limit for letters of credit of $80 million) entered into by TWCC with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, Credit Suisse, and certain other financial institutions. The proceeds from the Senior Credit Facility were
used to purchase the outstanding common stock and vested stock options of OshKosh ($312.1 million), pay Transaction
expenses ($6.2 million), refinance our former senior credit facility ($36.2 million), repurchase our Notes ($113.8 million),
pay a redemption premium on the Notes ($14.0 million), along with accrued and unpaid interest ($5.1 million), and pay
debt issuance costs ($10.6 million). Approximately $1.1 million of the debt issuance costs were expensed in accordance
with EITF 96-19. Other costs paid prior and subsequent to the closing of the Transaction totaled $1.4 million, including
$0.2 million in debt issuance costs.
As a result of the Transaction, we experienced an increase in interest costs, with weighted-average borrowings of
$397.9 million at an effective interest rate of 7.25% in fiscal 2006, as compared to weighted-average borrowings
of $320.6 million at an effective interest rate of 7.66% in fiscal 2005.
In March 2006, we made a $9.0 million prepayment on our Term Loan; in May 2006, we made a $15.0 million prepayment on our Term Loan; in June 2006, we made a $10.0 million prepayment on our Term Loan; in November 2006, we
made a $35.0 million prepayment on our Term Loan, and in December 2006, we made an $11.9 million prepayment
on our Term Loan. In fiscal 2006, we also made scheduled amortization payments of $4.1 million.
In addition to scheduled amortization payments made during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005, we prepaid
an additional $67.6 million of Term Loan indebtedness in fiscal 2005.
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At December 30, 2006, we had approximately $345.0 million in Term Loan borrowings and no borrowings under our
Revolver, exclusive of $14.5 million of outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2005, we had approximately
$430.0 million in Term Loan borrowings and no borrowings under our Revolver, exclusive of approximately $20.2 million
of outstanding letters of credit.
The term of the Revolver expires July 14, 2011 and the term of the Term Loan expires July 14, 2012. Principal borrowings under the Term Loan are due and payable in quarterly installments of $0.9 million from March 31, 2007 through
June 30, 2012 with the remaining balance of $325.8 million due on July 14, 2012.
The Senior Credit Facility requires us to hedge at least 25% of our variable rate debt under the Term Loan. On
September 22, 2005, we entered into a swap agreement to receive floating interest and pay fixed interest. This swap
agreement is designated as a cash flow hedge of the variable interest payments on a portion of our variable rate Term
Loan debt. The swap agreement matures July 30, 2010. As of December 30, 2006, approximately $165 million of our
outstanding Term Loan debt was hedged under this agreement.
On May 25, 2006, we entered into an interest rate collar agreement (the “collar”) with a floor of 4.3% and a ceiling of
5.5%. The collar covers $100 million of our variable rate Term Loan debt and is designated as a cash flow hedge of the
variable interest payments on such debt. The collar matures on January 31, 2009.
On April 28, 2006, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 (“Amendment No. 1”) to the Senior Credit Facility.
Amendment No. 1 reduced the Company’s interest rate by refinancing the existing Term Loan (initially priced at LIBOR
+ 1.75% with a leverage-based pricing grid ranging from LIBOR + 1.50% to LIBOR + 1.75%) with a new Term Loan
having an applicable rate of LIBOR + 1.50% with no leverage-based pricing grid. If the Company makes any optional
prepayments of its Term Loans prior to the one-year anniversary of Amendment No. 1 in connection with any repricing
transaction, the Company will be required to pay a prepayment premium of 1% of the amount of such Term Loans
being prepaid. Interest is payable at the end of interest rate reset periods, which vary in length, but in no case exceed
12 months for LIBOR rate loans and quarterly for prime rate loans. The effective interest rate on variable rate Term
Loan borrowings as of December 30, 2006 was 6.9%. The Senior Credit Facility contains financial covenants, including
a minimum interest coverage ratio, maximum leverage ratio, and fixed charge coverage ratio. The Senior Credit Facility
also sets forth mandatory and optional prepayment conditions, including an annual excess cash flow requirement, as
defined, that may result in our use of cash to reduce our debt obligations. There is no excess cash flow payment required
for fiscal 2006. Our obligations under the Senior Credit Facility are collateralized by a first priority lien on substantially
all of our assets, including the assets of our domestic subsidiaries.
On February 15, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Company’s plan to close its White House,
Tennessee distribution center, which has been utilized to distribute the Company’s OshKosh brand products. In
conjunction with the plan to close this distribution center, the Company anticipates it will incur approximately $5.8 million
in cash expenses. Estimated charges consist of approximately $3.8 million of severance and other employee-related
costs and $2.0 million of other costs to exit the facility. Additionally, the Company expects to incur approximately
$3.9 million of non-cash charges relating to accelerated depreciation and asset impairment.
On February 16, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program, pursuant to which the
Company is authorized to purchase up to $100 million of its outstanding common shares. Such repurchases may occur
from time to time in the open market, in negotiated transactions, or otherwise. This program has no time limit. The
timing and amount of any repurchases will be determined by the Company’s management, based on its evaluation
of market conditions, share price, and other factors.
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The following table summarizes as of December 30, 2006, the maturity or expiration dates of mandatory contractual
obligations and commitments for the following fiscal years:
dollars in thousands

2007

Long-term debt
$ 2,627
Interest on debt:
Variable rate (a)
23,043
Operating leases
(see Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial
Statements)
38,403
Total financial obligations
64,073
Letters of credit
14,546
Purchase obligations (b)
168,255
Total financial obligations
and commitments
$246,874

2008

2009

2010

2011

Thereafter

Total

$ 4,379

$ 3,503

$ 3,503

$ 3,503

$327,517

$345,032

23,043

23,043

23,043

23,043

11,522

126,737

31,296
58,718
–
–

26,276
52,822
–
–

20,189
46,735
–
–

14,383
40,929
–
–

32,823
371,862
–
–

163,370
635,139
14,546
168,255

$58,718

$52,822

$46,735

$40,929

$371,862

$817,940

(a)

Reflects estimated variable rate interest on obligations outstanding on our Term Loan as of December 30, 2006 using an interest rate of 6.9%
(rate in effect at December 30, 2006).

(b)

Unconditional purchase obligations are defined as agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding on us and
that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum, or variable price provisions; and the
approximate timing of the transaction. The purchase obligations category above relates to commitments for inventory purchases. Amounts reflected
on the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet in accounts payable or other current liabilities are excluded from the table above.

In addition to the total contractual obligations and commitments in the table above, we have post-retirement benefit
obligations, included in other current and other long-term liabilities as further described in Note 8 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements.
Based on our current level of operations, we believe that cash generated from operations and available cash, together
with amounts available under our Revolver, will be adequate to meet our debt service requirements, capital expenditures, and working capital needs for the foreseeable future, although no assurance can be given in this regard. We
may, however, need to refinance all or a portion of the principal amount of amounts outstanding under our Revolver
on or before July 14, 2011 and amounts outstanding under our Term Loan on or before July 14, 2012.

effects of inflation and deflation
We are affected by inflation and changing prices primarily through purchasing product from our global suppliers,
increased operating costs and expenses, and fluctuations in interest rates. The effects of inflation on our net sales
and operations have not been material in recent years. In recent years, there has been deflationary pressure on selling
prices. While we have been successful in offsetting such deflationary pressures through product improvements and
lower costs with the expansion of our global sourcing network, if deflationary price trends outpace our ability to obtain
further price reductions from our global suppliers, our profitability may be affected.

seasonality
We experience seasonal fluctuations in our sales and profitability, with generally lower sales and gross profit in the first
and second quarters of our fiscal year. Over the past five fiscal years, excluding the impact of the Acquisition in fiscal
2005, approximately 57% of our consolidated net sales were generated in the second half of our fiscal year. Accordingly,
our results of operations for the first and second quarters of any year are not indicative of the results we expect for the
full year.
As a result of this seasonality, our inventory levels and other working capital requirements generally begin to increase
during the second quarter and into the third quarter of each fiscal year. We had $5.0 million in peak borrowings in
fiscal 2006 and no borrowings under our former revolving credit facility or new Revolver during fiscal 2005.
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critical accounting policies and estimates
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.
Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements.
The following discussion addresses our critical accounting policies and estimates, which are those policies that require
management’s most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect
of matters that are inherently uncertain.

revenue recognition: We recognize wholesale and mass channel revenue after shipment of products to customers,
when title passes, when all risks and rewards of ownership have transferred, the sales price is fixed or determinable,
and collectibility is reasonably assured. In certain cases, in which we retain the risk of loss during shipment, revenue
recognition does not occur until the goods have reached the specified customer. In the normal course of business,
we grant certain accommodations and allowances to our wholesale and mass channel customers. We provide
accommodations and allowances to our key wholesale and mass channel customers in order to assist these customers
with inventory clearance and promotions. Such amounts are reflected as a reduction of net sales and are recorded
based upon historical trends and annual forecasts. Retail store revenues are recognized at the point of sale. We reduce
revenue for customer returns and deductions. We also maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to make payments and other actual and estimated deductions. If the
financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
an additional allowance could be required. Past due balances over 90 days are reviewed individually for collectibility.
Our credit and collections department reviews all other balances regularly. Account balances are charged off against
the allowance when we feel it is probable the receivable will not be recovered.
We contract with a third-party service to provide us with the fair value of cooperative advertising arrangements entered
into with certain of our major wholesale and mass channel customers. Such fair value is determined based upon, among
other factors, comparable market analysis for similar advertisements. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting
for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer/Reseller,” we have included the fair value of these arrangements
of approximately $3.3 million in fiscal 2006, $4.8 million in fiscal 2005, and $3.3 million in fiscal 2004 as a component
of selling, general, and administrative expenses on the accompanying audited consolidated statement of operations
rather than as a reduction of revenue. Amounts determined to be in excess of the fair value of these arrangements
are recorded as a reduction of net sales.

inventory: We provide reserves for slow-moving inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and
the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market
conditions are less favorable than those we project, additional write-downs may be required.
cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired and tradename: As of December 30, 2006, we had approximately
$602.0 million in cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired and tradename assets. The fair value of the Carter’s
tradename was estimated at the 2001 Acquisition to be approximately $220.2 million using a discounted cash flow
analysis, which examined the hypothetical cost savings that accrue as a result of our ownership of the tradename. The
fair value of the OshKosh tradename was estimated at the Acquisition to be approximately $102.0 million, also using
a discounted cash flow analysis. The cash flows, which incorporated both historical and projected financial performance,
were discounted using a discount rate of 10% and 12% for Carter’s and OshKosh, respectively. The tradenames were
determined to have indefinite lives. The carrying value of these assets is subject to annual impairment reviews as of
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the last day of each fiscal year. Factors affecting such impairment reviews include the continued market acceptance of
our offered products and the development of new products. Impairment reviews may also be triggered by any significant
events or changes in circumstances. Our impairment review of cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired is
based on the estimated fair values of the underlying businesses. These estimated fair values are based on estimates
of the future cash flows of the businesses.

accrued expenses: Accrued expenses for health insurance, workers’ compensation, incentive compensation, and other
outstanding obligations are assessed based on actual commitments, statistical trends, and estimates based on projections
and current expectations, and these estimates are updated periodically as additional information becomes available.
accounting for income taxes: As part of the process of preparing the accompanying audited consolidated financial
statements, we are required to estimate our actual current tax exposure (state, federal, and foreign), together with
assessing permanent and temporary differences resulting from differing bases and treatment of items for tax and
accounting purposes, such as the carrying value of intangibles, deductibility of expenses, depreciation of property,
plant, and equipment, and valuation of inventories. Temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which are included within our consolidated balance sheets. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax
assets will be recovered from future taxable income. Actual results could differ from this assessment if sufficient taxable
income is not generated in future periods. To the extent we determine the need to establish a valuation allowance or
increase such allowance in a period, we must include an expense within the tax provision in the accompanying audited
consolidated statement of operations.
stock-based compensation arrangements: The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance
with the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R. The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified
prospective application method of transition. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which
requires the use of subjective assumptions. These assumptions include the following:
volatility – This is a measure of the amount by which a stock price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate.
The Company uses actual monthly historical changes in the market value of our stock since the Company’s initial
public offering on October 29, 2003, supplemented by peer company data for periods prior to our initial public
offering covering the expected life of options being valued. An increase in the expected volatility will increase
compensation expense.
risk-free interest rate – This is the U.S. Treasury rate as of the grant date having a term equal to the expected
term of the option. An increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.
expected term – This is the period of time over which the options granted are expected to remain outstanding
and is based on historical experience and estimated future exercise behavior. Separate groups of employees that
have similar historical exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. An increase in the
expected term will increase compensation expense.
dividend yield – The Company does not have plans to pay dividends in the foreseeable future. An increase in the
dividend yield will decrease compensation expense.
forfeitures – The Company estimates forfeitures of stock-based awards based on historical experience and
expected future activity.
Changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation
and consequently, the related amount recognized in the accompanying audited consolidated statement of operations.
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recent accounting pronouncements
In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return, and also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with this
interpretation begins with a determination as to whether it is “more likely than not” that a tax position will be sustained
upon examination based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the “more likely than not”
recognition threshold is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement for recognition in the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2006. The cumulative effect, if any, of applying FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to retained
earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. While our analysis of the impact of this interpretation is not
yet complete, we do not anticipate it will have a material impact on our retained earnings at the time of adoption.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The provisions
of SFAS 157 are effective as of the beginning of our 2008 fiscal year. We are currently evaluating the impact of
adopting SFAS 157 on our financial statements.
In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities –
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”), which provides entities with an option to report
selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements
designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of
assets and liabilities. This statement is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year that begins after November 15,
2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 159 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

forward-looking statements
Statements contained herein that relate to our future performance, including, without limitation, statements with
respect to our anticipated results of operations or level of business for fiscal 2007 or any other future period, are
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Such statements are based on current expectations only and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties, and
assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, or projected. These risks are described
under the heading Risk Factors in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk
In the operation of our business, we have market risk exposures, including those related to foreign currency risk and
interest rates. These risks and our strategies to manage our exposure to them are discussed below.
We contract for production with third parties primarily in the Far East and South and Central America. While these
contracts are stated in United States dollars, there can be no assurance that the cost for the future production of our
products will not be affected by exchange rate fluctuations between the United States dollar and the local currencies
of these contractors. Due to the number of currencies involved, we cannot quantify the potential impact of future currency
fluctuations on net income in future years. In order to manage this risk, we source products from approximately 100
vendors worldwide, providing us with flexibility in our production should significant fluctuations occur between the
United States dollar and various local currencies. To date, such exchange fluctuations have not had a material impact
on our financial condition or results of operations. We do not hedge foreign currency exchange rate risk.
Our operating results are subject to risk from interest rate fluctuations on our Senior Credit Facility, which carries variable
interest rates. As of December 30, 2006, our outstanding debt aggregated approximately $345.0 million, of which
$79.9 million bore interest at a variable rate. An increase of 1% in the applicable rate would increase our annual interest
cost by $0.8 million, exclusive of variable rate debt subject to our swap and collar agreements described above, and
could have an adverse effect on our net income and cash flow.

other risks
There also are other risks in the operation of our business specifically related to our global sourcing network.
We source all of our production from third-party manufacturers primarily located in foreign countries. As a result,
we may be adversely affected by political instability resulting in the disruption of trade from foreign countries, the
imposition of new regulations relating to imports, duties, taxes, and other charges on imports, including the China
safeguards, any significant decreases in the value of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies, and restrictions on the
transfer of funds. These and other factors could result in the interruption of production in offshore facilities, delay
receipt of the products into the United States, or affect our operating income. Our future performance may be subject
to such factors, which are beyond our control, and there can be no assurance that such factors would not have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We carefully select our sourcing agents and, in
an effort to mitigate the possible disruption in product flow, we place production in various countries that we believe
to be of lower risk.
We enter into various purchase order commitments with full-package suppliers. We can cancel these arrangements,
although in some instances, we may be subject to a termination charge reflecting a percentage of work performed
prior to cancellation. Historically, such cancellations and related termination charges have not had a material impact
on our business. However, as we rely nearly exclusively on our full-package global sourcing network, we expect to
incur more of these termination charges, which could increase our cost of goods sold.
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Carter’s, Inc.:
We have completed integrated audits of Carter’s, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits,
are presented below.

consolidated financial statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Carter’s, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 30,
2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for stock-based compensation in 2006.

internal control over financial reporting
Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting appearing on page 39, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 30, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by
the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
February 28, 2007
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Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted evaluations of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based on our evaluations under
the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the COSO, our management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 30, 2006.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of Carter’s, Inc. and its subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting as of December 30, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.
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dollars in thousands, except for share data

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of reserve for doubtful accounts
of $3,316 in fiscal 2006 and $3,947 in fiscal 2005
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Tradenames
Cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired
Licensing agreements, net of accumulated amortization of $6,205
in fiscal 2006 and $1,950 in fiscal 2005
Deferred debt issuance costs, net
Leasehold interests, net of accumulated amortization of
$682 in fiscal 2006 and $214 in fiscal 2005
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share;
100,000 shares authorized; none issued or outstanding
at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005
Common stock, voting; par value $.01 per share;
150,000,000 shares authorized; 58,927,280 shares issued and
outstanding at December 30, 2006; 40,000,000 shares authorized;
28,909,729 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005
Additional paid-in capital
Deferred compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$

$

68,545

84,276

110,615
193,588
7,296
22,377
402,421
87,940
322,233
279,756

96,144
188,454
6,262
23,909
399,045
79,458
322,233
284,172

12,895
5,903

17,150
8,257

1,151
10,892
$1,123,191

1,619
4,793
$1,116,727

$

$

2,627
70,878
63,012
136,517
342,405
125,784
22,994
627,700

3,241
63,735
89,627
156,603
426,791
124,439
22,250
730,083

–

–

589
275,045
–
5,301
214,556
495,491
$1,123,191

289
260,414
(2,749)
1,354
127,336
386,644
$1,116,727

consolidated statements of operations

For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands, except per share data

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Closure costs
Royalty income
Operating income
Interest income
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

$1,343,467
854,970
488,497
352,459
91
(29,164)
165,111
(1,914)
–
28,837
138,188
50,968
$ 87,220

$1,121,358
725,086
396,272
288,624
6,828
(20,426)
121,246
(1,322)
20,137
24,564
77,867
30,665
$ 47,202

$823,121
525,082
298,039
208,756
620
(12,362)
101,025
(335)
–
18,852
82,508
32,850
$ 49,658

Basic net income per common share
Diluted net income per common share
Basic weighted-average number of shares outstanding
Diluted weighted-average number of shares outstanding

$
1.50
$
1.42
57,996,241
61,247,122

$
0.82
$
0.78
57,280,504
60,753,384

$
0.88
$
0.83
56,251,168
59,855,914

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Amortization of inventory step-up
Accretion of debt discount
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense
Non-cash closure costs
Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant, and equipment
Income tax benefit from exercised stock options
Deferred income taxes
Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities
(net of assets acquired and liabilities assumed):
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of OshKosh B’Gosh, Inc., net of cash acquired
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Collections on loan
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on new term loan
Proceeds from new term loan
Proceeds from revolving loan facility
Payments on revolving loan facility
Proceeds from former revolving loan facility
Payments on former revolving loan facility
Payments on former term loan
Payment of 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes
Payment of debt redemption premium
Payments of capital lease obligations
Payments of debt issuance costs
Income tax benefit from exercised stock options
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Net cash (used in)
provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

42

Carter’s, Inc. 2006 Annual Report

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$ 87,220

$ 47,202

$ 49,658

26,489
–
2,354
–
–
5,942
–
118
(9,155)
502

21,912
20,137
2,802
13,900
40
1,824
113
(64)
6,590
380

19,536
–
1,799
–
75
377
–
164
3,807
(3,143)

(14,471)
(5,134)
(886)
7,143
(11,898)
88,224

275
4,639
543
18,230
(1,256)
137,267

(15,122)
(16,032)
2,132
(3,983)
3,408
42,676

–
(30,848)
348
–
–
–
(30,500)

(309,984)
(22,588)
2,860
229,180
(210,825)
2,954
(308,403)

–
(20,481)
1,304
–
–
600
(18,577)

(85,000)
–
5,000
(5,000)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
9,155
2,390

(69,968)
500,000
–
–
–
–
(71,326)
(113,750)
(14,015)
–
(10,780)
–
1,986

–
–
–
–
90,510
(90,510)
(28,286)
–
–
(164)
–
–
1,555

(73,455)
(15,731)
84,276
$ 68,545

222,147
51,011
33,265
$ 84,276

(26,895)
(2,796)
36,061
$ 33,265

consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity

dollars in thousands, except for share data

Common
stock

Balance at January 3, 2004
$280
Tax benefit from exercise
of stock options
Exercise of stock options
(888,114 shares)
4
Compensation expense on
stock options
Issuance of restricted stock
(6,070 shares)
Amortization of deferred compensation
Net income
Balance at January 1, 2005
284
Tax benefit from exercise
of stock options
Exercise of stock options
(806,000 shares)
5
Compensation expense
on stock options
Issuance of common stock
(18,354 shares)
Issuance of restricted stock
(130,200 shares)
Amortization of
deferred compensation
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap,
net of tax of $795
Total comprehensive income
–
Balance at December 31, 2005
289
Tax benefit from exercise
of stock options
Exercise of stock options
(994,250 shares)
9
Stock-based compensation expense
Issuance of common stock
(17,172 shares)
Reversal of deferred compensation
(Note 7)
Two-for-one common stock split
(Note 6)
291
SFAS 158 transition adjustment,
net of tax of $2,329 (Note 8)
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap,
net of tax of $194
Unrealized loss on interest rate collar,
net of tax of $148
Total comprehensive income
–
Balance at December 30, 2006
$589

Additional
paid-in
capital

Accumulated
other
Deferred
comprehensive
compensation
income

$241,780

$

–

$

–

Retained
earnings

Total
stockholders’
equity

$ 30,476

$272,536

3,807

3,807

1,551

1,555

372

372

100

(100)
5

247,610

(95)

–

49,658
80,134

5
49,658
327,933

6,590

6,590

1,981

1,986

725

725

420

420

3,088

(3,088)
434

–
260,414

–
(2,749)

434

1,354
1,354
1,354

47,202

47,202

47,202
127,336

1,354
48,556
386,644

9,417

9,417

2,381
5,333

2,390
5,333

540

540

(2,749)

2,749

(291)
3,836

3,836
87,220

370

–
$275,045

$

–
–

(259)
111
$5,301

87,220
370

87,220
$214,556

(259)
87,331
$495,491

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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NOTE 1 the company
Carter’s, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company,” “we,” “us,” “its,” and “our”) design,
source, and market branded childrenswear under the Carter’s, Child of Mine, Just One Year, OshKosh, and related
labels. Our products are sourced through contractual arrangements with manufacturers worldwide for wholesale
distribution to major domestic retailers, including the mass channel, and for our 219 Carter’s and 157 OshKosh retail
stores that market our brand name merchandise and other licensed products manufactured by other companies.
On July 14, 2005, Carter’s, Inc., through its wholly owned subsidiary, The William Carter Company (“TWCC”) acquired
all of the outstanding common stock of OshKosh B’Gosh, Inc. for a purchase price of $312.1 million, which included
payment for vested stock options (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method
of accounting. The purchase price for the Acquisition, including related fees and expenses, was allocated to the fair
value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities acquired with the remainder allocated to cost in
excess of fair value of net assets acquired.
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements include the operations of OshKosh for the fiscal year
ended December 30, 2006. The consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005
reflects the operations of OshKosh for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
As part of financing the Acquisition, the Company refinanced its existing debt (the “Refinancing”), including its senior
credit facility (“former senior credit facility”) and repurchased $113.8 million of 10.875% Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2011 (the “Notes”) (together with the Acquisition, the “Transaction”). Financing for the Transaction was provided
by a new $500 million Term Loan (the “Term Loan”) and a $125 million revolving credit facility (including a sub-limit
for letters of credit of $80 million, the “Revolver”) entered into by TWCC with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative
agent, Credit Suisse, and certain other financial institutions (the “Senior Credit Facility,” see Note 5).
The proceeds from the Refinancing were used to purchase the outstanding common stock and vested stock options
of OshKosh B’Gosh, Inc. ($312.1 million), pay Transaction expenses ($6.2 million), refinance the Company’s former
senior credit facility ($36.2 million), repurchase the Notes ($113.8 million), pay a redemption premium on the Notes
($14.0 million), along with accrued and unpaid interest ($5.1 million), and pay debt issuance costs ($10.6 million).
Other Transaction expenses paid prior to and subsequent to the closing of the Transaction totaled $1.4 million,
including $0.2 million in debt issuance costs.
As a result of the Refinancing, we expensed $4.5 million in unamortized debt issuance costs related to the former
senior credit facility and Notes and expensed $0.5 million related to the debt discount on the Notes. Additionally, we
expensed approximately $1.1 million of debt issuance costs associated with the Senior Credit Facility in accordance
with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 96-19, “Debtor’s Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt
Instruments” (“EITF 96-19”).
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A summary of the Acquisition purchase price allocation is as follows:
dollars in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant, and equipment
Tradename
Licensing agreements
Leasehold interests
Other assets
Accounts payable
Severance and relocation (Note 16)
Other exit costs (Note 16)
Lease termination costs (Note 16)
Contract termination costs (Note 16)
Deferred tax liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities
Cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired

$

9,500
18,355
15,979
86,201
13,453
26,107
102,000
19,100
1,833
5,075
(19,052)
(9,733)
(2,167)
(7,200)
(1,533)
(41,800)
(39,820)
143,186
$319,484

Final adjustments of approximately $1.0 million had been made to the preliminary Acquisition purchase price through
the second quarter of fiscal 2006, resulting in a reduction in the cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired.
Additionally, as further described in Note 2, approximately $0.7 million related to pre-Acquisition tax contingencies
were reversed, resulting in a corresponding reduction in the cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired.
The following unaudited pro forma summary presents information as if the Transaction occurred at the beginning
of the periods presented with financing obtained as described above and assumes that there were no other changes
in our operations. This pro forma information does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred
had the Company been combined during the periods presented, nor is it necessarily indicative of the future results
of operations of the combined companies.
The unaudited pro forma summary reflects the combined Company for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and
January 1, 2005.
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands, except per share data

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

Pro
Pro
Pro
Pro

$1,294,684
$ 38,881
$
0.68
$
0.64

$1,221,861
$ 32,183
$
0.57
$
0.54

forma
forma
forma
forma

net sales
net income
basic earnings per share
diluted earnings per share

Included in the unaudited pro forma results shown above for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and January 1,
2005 are a redemption premium of $14.0 million related to the repurchase of the Notes, a $4.5 million write-off of
unamortized debt issuance costs related to the former senior credit facility and the Notes, a $0.5 million charge related
to the discount on the Notes, and a $1.1 million charge to write off new debt issuance costs incurred in connection
with the Refinancing in accordance with EITF 96-19. Also included in the above pro forma results for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, is a pre-tax charge of $13.9 million related to the amortization of the
step-up of acquired OshKosh inventory to fair value.
On July 12, 2001, a special purpose entity formed by Berkshire Partners entered into a stock purchase agreement with
Carter’s, Inc. and all of Carter’s, Inc.’s stockholders to acquire substantially all of the stock of Carter’s, Inc. except for
some equity interests held by our management (the “2001 Acquisition”). The 2001 Acquisition was consummated on
August 15, 2001 and was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting.
Carter’s, Inc. 2006 Annual Report
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NOTE 2 summary of significant accounting policies
principles of consolidation
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Carter’s, Inc. and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for comparative purposes.

fiscal year
Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday in December or January nearest to the last day of December. The accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements reflect our financial position as of December 30, 2006 and December 31,
2005 and results of operations for the fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and January 1,
2005. The fiscal years ended December 30, 2006 (fiscal 2006), December 31, 2005 (fiscal 2005), and January 1, 2005
(fiscal 2004), each contain 52 weeks.

cash and cash equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments that have original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
We had cash deposits, in excess of deposit insurance limits, in nine banks at December 30, 2006 and in ten banks at
December 31, 2005.

accounts receivable
Approximately 85.2% of our gross accounts receivable at December 30, 2006 and 81.0% at December 31, 2005
were from our ten largest wholesale and mass channel customers. Of these customers, four had individual receivable
balances in excess of 10% of our gross accounts receivable (but not more than 18%) at December 30, 2006. At
December 31, 2005, three had individual receivable balances in excess of 10% of our gross accounts receivable (but
not more than 19%). Sales to these customers represent comparable percentages to total wholesale and mass channel
net sales. In fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, two customers each accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated net sales.
Components of accounts receivable as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 are as follows:

dollars in thousands

Trade receivables, net
Royalties receivable
Other
Total

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$ 96,952
6,978
6,685
$110,615

$87,675
6,639
1,830
$96,144

inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis for wholesale and mass channel inventory and average
cost for retail inventories) or market. We provide reserves for slow-moving inventory equal to the difference between the
cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions.

property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. When fixed assets
are sold or otherwise disposed of, the accounts are relieved of the original cost of the assets, and the related accumulated
depreciation and any resulting profit or loss is credited or charged to income. For financial reporting purposes,
depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows: buildings – 15 to 26 years and computers and equipment – 3 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements and
fixed assets purchased under capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the asset life or related lease term.
We capitalize the cost of our fixtures designed and purchased for use at major wholesale and mass channel accounts.
The cost of these fixtures is amortized over a three-year period.
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cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired and other intangibile assets
Cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired represents the excess of the cost of the Acquisition and the 2001
Acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Our cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired is not
deductible for tax purposes.
In connection with the 2001 Acquisition, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141”), and applied the required provisions of SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Accordingly, our tradename and cost in excess of fair value of net assets
acquired are deemed to have indefinite lives and are not being amortized. Our licensing agreements, however,
recognized in the allocation of the 2001 Acquisition purchase price, were amortized over the average three-year life
of such agreements, as it was determined that these agreements had finite lives. Amortization expense on our licensing
agreements was $3.1 million for fiscal 2004. The licensing agreements were fully amortized as of August 15, 2004.
In connection with the Acquisition of OshKosh on July 14, 2005, the Company recorded cost in excess of fair value of
net assets acquired and other intangible assets in accordance with SFAS 141.
As of December 30, 2006, cost in excess of net assets acquired and other intangible assets resulting from the
Acquisition were as follows:

dollars in thousands

Weightedaverage
useful life

Gross
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired
OshKosh tradename
OshKosh licensing agreements
Leasehold interests

Indefinite
Indefinite
4.7 years
4.1 years

$143,186
$102,000
$ 19,100
$ 1,833

$
–
$
–
$6,205
$ 682

During the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, approximately $0.7 million related to pre-Acquisition tax contingencies
were reversed due to the closure of certain tax periods. This reversal resulted in a corresponding adjustment to cost in
excess of fair value of net assets acquired of $0.7 million in accordance with EITF No. 93-7, “Uncertainties Related to
Income Taxes in a Purchase Business Combination” (“EITF 93-7”).
Amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization was approximately $4.7 million for the fiscal year
ended December 30, 2006 and $2.2 million for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005. Annual
amortization expenses for the OshKosh licensing agreements and leasehold interests are expected to be as follows:

dollars in thousands
Fiscal year

2007
2008
2009
2010
Total

Estimated
amortization
expense

$ 4,446
4,106
3,717
1,777
$14,046

During the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, approximately $2.7 million related to tax contingencies established
in connection with the 2001 Acquisition were reversed due to the closure of certain tax periods. This reversal resulted
in a corresponding adjustment to cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired of $2.7 million in accordance with
EITF 93-7.
We measure our goodwill and tradename for impairment (by comparing the fair values of our reporting units to their
respective carrying values, including allocated goodwill) on at least an annual basis or if events or changes in circumstances
so dictate. Based upon our most recent assessment performed as of December 30, 2006, we found there to be no
impairment of our cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired or tradename assets.
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impairment of other long-lived assets
We review other long-lived assets, including property, plant, and equipment and licensing agreements, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such an asset may not be recoverable. Management will determine whether there has been a permanent impairment on such assets held for use in the
business by comparing anticipated undiscounted future cash flows from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or
asset group to the carrying value of the asset. The amount of any resulting impairment will be calculated by comparing
the carrying value to fair value, which may be estimated using the present value of the same cash flows. Long-lived assets
that meet the definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less costs to sell.

deferred debt issuance costs
Debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the related debt. Amortization approximated $2,354,000 for the
fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, $2,802,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, and $1,799,000 for
the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005.

cash flow hedges
The Senior Credit Facility requires us to hedge at least 25% of our variable rate Term Loan debt. On September 22,
2005, we entered into a swap agreement to receive floating interest and pay fixed interest. This swap agreement is
designated as a cash flow hedge of the variable interest payments on a portion of our variable rate Term Loan debt.
The swap agreement matures on July 30, 2010. The unrealized gain, net of taxes, related to the interest rate swap
was $0.4 million for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 and $1.4 million for the period from September 22,
2005 to December 31, 2005 and is included within accumulated other comprehensive income on the accompanying
audited consolidated balance sheets. During the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, we reclassified approximately
$1.3 million related to the swap agreement into earnings.
On May 25, 2006, we entered into an interest rate collar agreement (the “collar”) with a floor of 4.3% and a ceiling of
5.5%. The collar covers $100 million of our variable rate Term Loan debt and is designated as a cash flow hedge of the
variable interest payments on such debt. The collar matures on January 31, 2009. The unrealized loss, net of tax benefit,
related to the collar was ($0.3) million for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 and is included within accumulated
other comprehensive income on the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet.

accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated other comprehensive income, shown as a component of stockholders’ equity on the accompanying
audited consolidated balance sheets, reflects unrealized gains or losses on the Company’s interest rate swap and
collar, net of tax, which are not included in the determination of net income. These unrealized gains and losses are
recorded directly into accumulated other comprehensive income and are referred to as comprehensive income items.
Accumulated other comprehensive income in fiscal 2006 also reflects the recording of a net transition benefit asset
resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)” (“SFAS 158”). Prospectively,
accumulated other comprehensive income will reflect, net of tax, the gains and losses and prior service costs or
credits that arise during the period but that are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant
to SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” (“SFAS 87”) or SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions” (“SFAS 106”).

revenue recognition
Revenues consist of sales to customers, net of returns, accommodations, allowances, deductions, and cooperative
(“co-op”) advertising. We consider revenue realized or realizable and earned when the product has been shipped,
when title passes, when all risks and rewards of ownership have transferred, the sales price is fixed or determinable,
and collectibility is reasonably assured. In certain cases, in which we retain the risk of loss during shipment, revenue
recognition does not occur until the goods have reached the specified customer. In the normal course of business,
we grant certain accommodations and allowances to our wholesale and mass channel customers. We provide
accommodations and allowances to our major wholesale and mass channel customers in order to assist these customers
with inventory clearance and promotions. Such amounts are reflected as a reduction of net sales and are recorded
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based on historical trends and annual forecasts. Retail store revenues are recognized at the point of sale. We reduce
revenue for customer returns and deductions. We also maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to make payments and other actual and estimated deductions. If the financial
condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, an additional
allowance could be required. Past due balances over 90 days are reviewed individually for collectibility. Our credit and
collections department reviews all other balances regularly. Account balances are charged off against the allowance
when we feel it is probable the receivable will not be recovered.
We contract with a third-party service to provide us with the fair value of co-op advertising arrangements entered
into with certain of our major wholesale and mass channel customers. Such fair value is determined based upon,
among other factors, comparable market analysis for similar advertisements. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-09,
“Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer/Reseller,” we have included the fair value of these
arrangements of approximately $3.3 million in fiscal 2006, $4.8 million in fiscal 2005, and $3.3 million in fiscal 2004 as
a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses on the accompanying audited consolidated statement
of operations rather than as a reduction of revenue. Amounts determined to be in excess of the fair value of these
arrangements are recorded as a reduction of net sales.

accounting for shipping and handling fees and costs
Shipping and handling costs include shipping supplies, related labor costs, third-party shipping costs, and certain
distribution overhead. Such costs are generally absorbed by us and are included in selling, general, and administrative
expenses. These costs amounted to approximately $38,059,000 for fiscal 2006, $37,089,000 for fiscal 2005, and
$26,955,000 for fiscal 2004.
With respect to the freight component of our shipping and handling costs, certain customers arrange for shipping
and pay the related freight costs directly to third parties. However, in the event that we arrange and pay the freight
for these customers and bill them for this service, such amounts billed would be included in revenue and the related
cost would be charged to cost of goods sold. For fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, no such arrangements or billings
to customers occurred.

royalties and license fees
We license the Carter’s, Just One Year, Child of Mine, OshKosh, and Genuine Kids from OshKosh trademarks to other
companies for use on baby and young children’s products, including bedding, outerwear, sleepwear, shoes, socks,
room décor, toys, stationery, strollers, hair accessories, and related products. These royalties are recorded as earned,
based upon the sales of licensed products by our licensees.

stock-based compensation arrangements
In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), which replaced SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”)
as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148”),
and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” (“APB 25”).
SFAS 123R requires companies to expense the fair value of employee stock options and similar awards. Effective
January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R and began recognizing compensation expense for its share-based
payments based on the fair value of the awards at the grant date. Under SFAS 123R, the pro forma disclosures previously
permitted under SFAS 123 are no longer an alternative to financial statement recognition.
The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective application method of transition. Therefore, prior
period financial statements have not been restated. Under the modified prospective application method, for awards
granted prior to January 1, 2006, compensation expense is recorded as options vest subsequent to January 1, 2006
based upon the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, adjusted for
estimated forfeitures. For stock options granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, compensation expense will be
recorded as options vest based upon the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with SFAS 123R, with
forfeitures estimated at the time of grant. Forfeiture estimates will be adjusted periodically based on the extent
to which actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from previous estimates.
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We determine the fair value of stock options under SFAS 123R using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which is
consistent with our valuation techniques previously utilized for stock options in pro forma footnote disclosure required
under SFAS 123, and require the use of subjective assumptions. These assumptions include the following:

volatility – This is a measure of the amount by which a stock price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate. The
Company uses actual monthly historical changes in the market value of our stock since the Company’s initial public
offering on October 29, 2003, supplemented by peer company data for periods prior to our initial public offering
covering the expected life of options being valued. An increase in the expected volatility will increase compensation expense.
risk-free interest rate – This is the U.S. Treasury rate as of the grant date having a term equal to the expected
term of the option. An increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.
expected term – This is the period of time over which the options granted are expected to remain outstanding
and is based on historical experience and estimated future exercise behavior. Separate groups of employees that
have similar historical exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. An increase in the
expected term will increase compensation expense.
dividend yield – The Company does not have plans to pay dividends in the foreseeable future. An increase in the
dividend yield will decrease compensation expense.
forfeitures – The Company estimates forfeitures of stock-based awards based on historical experience and
expected future activity.
Changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation
and consequently, the related amount recognized in the accompanying audited consolidated statement of operations.
Prior to the filing of our first Registration Statement on Form S-1 on August 23, 2002 in connection with our initial public
offering, we used the minimum value method to value stock options, as provided by SFAS 123. Under SFAS 123R, no
compensation expense has been recorded for options recorded under the minimum value method.
The fair value of restricted stock is determined based on the quoted closing price of our common stock on the date of
grant, consistent with our treatment of such awards under APB 25 prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we presented all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock options as
operating cash inflows in the consolidated statements of cash flows, in accordance with the provisions of EITF Issue
No. 00-15, “Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of the Income Tax Benefit Received by a Company upon
Exercise of a Nonqualified Employee Stock Option.” SFAS 123R requires the benefit of tax deductions in excess of
the compensation cost recognized and disclosed under SFAS 123 and SFAS 123R for exercised options to be classified
as financing cash inflows rather than operating cash inflows, on a prospective basis. This amount is now shown as
“Income tax benefit from exercised stock options” on the accompanying audited consolidated statement of cash
flows. The income tax benefit from exercised stock options, presented as a cash inflow from financing activities for
the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, was approximately $9.2 million. Prior periods have not been restated. In
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R, we have also selected the long-form method for establishing our additional
paid-in capital pool.

income taxes
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements reflect current and deferred tax provisions. The deferred
tax provision is determined under the liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on
differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities using presently enacted tax rates. Valuation
allowances are established when it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be recovered. The provision
for income taxes is generally the sum of the amount of income taxes paid or payable for the year as determined by
applying the provisions of enacted tax laws to the taxable income for that year, the net change during the year in our
deferred tax assets and liabilities, and the net change during the year in any valuation allowances.
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supplemental cash flow information
Interest paid in cash approximated $27,815,000 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, $21,720,000 for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, and $16,979,000 for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005. Income taxes paid
in cash approximated $40,277,000 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, $20,245,000 for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005, and $33,970,000 for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005.

use of estimates in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires our management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

earnings per share
In accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share,” basic earnings per share is based on the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the year, whereas diluted earnings per share also gives effect to all
potentially dilutive shares of common stock, including basic and retained stock options and unvested restricted stock,
that were outstanding during the period. All such stock options are reflected in the denominator using the treasury
stock method. This method assumes that shares are issued for stock options that are “in the money,” but that we use
the proceeds of such stock option exercises (generally, cash to be paid plus future compensation expense to be recognized and the amount of tax benefits, if any, that will be credited to additional paid-in capital assuming exercise of the
stock options) to repurchase shares at the average market value of our shares for the respective periods. Unvested
shares of restricted stock are reflected in the denominator using the treasury stock method with proceeds of the
amount, if any, the employees must pay upon vesting, the amount of compensation cost attributed to future services
and not yet recognized in earnings, and the amount of tax benefits, if any, that would be credited to additional paid-in
capital (i.e., the amount of the tax deduction in excess of recognized compensation cost) assuming vesting of the
shares at the current market price. We have used our best estimate of the average fair market value of our shares for
the respective periods prior to our initial public offering completed on October 29, 2003.
For the fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and January 1, 2005, antidilutive and performancebased shares of 351,250; 869,600; and 608,470 were excluded from the computations of diluted earnings per share.
The following is a reconciliation of basic common shares outstanding to diluted common and common equivalent
shares outstanding.
For the fiscal years ended

Net income
Weighted-average number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding:
Basic number of common shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of unvested restricted stock
Dilutive effect of stock options
Diluted number of common and common equivalent
shares outstanding
Basic net income per common share
Diluted net income per common share

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$87,220,000

$47,202,000

$49,658,000

57,996,241
71,626
3,179,255

57,280,504
2,140
3,470,740

56,251,168
–
3,604,746

$
$

61,247,122
1.50
1.42

$
$

60,753,384
0.82
0.78

$
$

59,855,914
0.88
0.83
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recent accounting pronouncements
In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and
also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure,
and transition. The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with this interpretation begins with a determination as
to whether it is “more likely than not” that a tax position will be sustained upon examination based on the technical
merits of the position. A tax position that meets the “more likely than not” recognition threshold is then measured
at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement for
recognition in the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The
cumulative effect, if any, of applying FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of adoption. While our analysis of the impact of this interpretation is not yet complete, we do not
anticipate it will have a material impact on our retained earnings at the time of the adoption.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The provisions
of SFAS 157 are effective as of the beginning of our 2008 fiscal year. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, of
adopting SFAS 157 on our financial statements.
In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities –
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”), which provides entities with an option to report
selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements
designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets
and liabilities. This statement is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year that begins after November 15,
2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 159 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 inventories
Inventories consisted of the following:

dollars in thousands

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials and supplies
Total

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$193,588
–
–
$193,588

$185,472
2,336
646
$188,454

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$ 57,767
90,681
4,923
2,041
155,412
(67,472)
$ 87,940

$ 49,401
65,759
4,904
8,093
128,157
(48,699)
$ 79,458

NOTE 4 property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following:

dollars in thousands

Land, buildings, and improvements
Computers and equipment
Marketing fixtures
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $21,767,000 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006,
$19,748,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, and $16,411,000 for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005.
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NOTE 5 long-term debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

dollars in thousands

Senior Credit Facility Term Loan
Current maturities
Total long-term debt

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$345,032
(2,627)
$342,405

$430,032
(3,241)
$426,791

refinancing
In connection with the Acquisition on July 14, 2005, as further described in Note 1, we refinanced our former senior
credit facility, which consisted of a $36.2 million Term Loan and an available $80 million revolving loan facility under
which no borrowings were outstanding, exclusive of outstanding letters of credit, and we repurchased our Notes due
2011 at a price that included a redemption premium of $14.0 million in addition to the principal amount of $113.8 million.
As a result of the Refinancing, we expensed $4.5 million in unamortized debt issuance costs related to the former
senior credit facility and the Notes and expensed $0.5 million related to the debt discount on the Notes. The effective
interest rate on variable rate senior credit facility borrowings outstanding as of July 14, 2005 was 5.1% and 5.0% at
January 1, 2005.

senior credit facility
Financing for the Transaction, as further described in Note 1, was provided by a new Senior Credit Facility comprised of
a $500 million Term Loan and a $125 million Revolver (including a sub-limit for letters of credit of $80 million) entered
into by TWCC with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, Credit Suisse, and certain other financial institutions.
The term of the Revolver expires July 14, 2011 and the term of the Term Loan expires July 14, 2012. Since the Acquisition
in addition to scheduled amortization payments, we made voluntary prepayments on our Term Loan of $80.9 million
in fiscal 2006 and $67.6 million in fiscal 2005.
In connection with the Senior Credit Facility, the Company incurred in fiscal 2005 approximately $10.8 million in debt
issuance costs. Approximately $1.1 million of these debt issuance costs were expensed in accordance with EITF 96-19.
Amounts outstanding under the Revolver initially accrue interest at a prime rate plus 0.75% or, at our option, a LIBOR
rate plus 1.75% and may be reduced based upon the achievement of certain leverage ratios. There were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolver at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005.
Amounts outstanding under the Term Loan initially accrued interest at prime rate plus 0.75% or, at our option, a
LIBOR rate plus 1.75% and could be reduced based upon the achievement of certain leverage ratios and credit ratings.
On April 28, 2006, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 (“Amendment No. 1”) to the Senior Credit Facility.
Amendment No. 1 reduced the Company’s interest rate by refinancing an existing Term Loan (initially priced at LIBOR
+ 1.75% with a leverage-based pricing grid ranging from LIBOR + 1.50% to LIBOR + 1.75%) with a new Term Loan
having an applicable rate of LIBOR + 1.50% with no leverage-based pricing grid. If the Company makes any optional
prepayments of its Term Loans prior to the one-year anniversary of Amendment No. 1 in connection with any repricing
transaction, the Company will be required to pay a prepayment premium of 1% of the amount of such Term Loans
being prepaid. Interest is payable at the end of interest rate reset periods, which vary in length but in no case exceed
12 months for LIBOR rate loans and quarterly for prime rate loans. The effective interest rates on variable rate Term
Loan borrowings as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 were 6.9% and 5.7%.
The Senior Credit Facility contains financial covenants, including a minimum interest coverage ratio, maximum leverage
ratio, and fixed charge coverage ratio. The Senior Credit Facility also sets forth mandatory and optional prepayment
conditions, including an annual excess cash flow requirement, as defined, that may result in our use of cash to reduce
our debt obligations. Amendment No. 1 also lowered the threshold for permitting restricted payments by raising the
required leverage ratio (as defined) from 1.5 times to 2.5 times provided the Company has revolving loan commitments
of $75.0 million available. Our obligations under the Senior Credit Facility are collateralized by a first priority lien on
substantially all of our assets, including the assets of our domestic subsidiaries.
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The Senior Credit Facility requires us to hedge at least 25% of our variable rate debt under the Term Loan. On
September 22, 2005, we entered into a swap agreement to receive floating interest and pay fixed interest. This
swap agreement is designated as a cash flow hedge of the variable interest payments on a portion of our variable
rate Term Loan debt as of December 30, 2006. The swap agreement matures July 30, 2010.
On May 25, 2006, we entered into an interest rate collar agreement with a floor of 4.3% and a ceiling of 5.5%. The
collar covers $100 million of our variable rate Term Loan debt and is designated as a cash flow hedge of the variable
interest payments on such debt. The collar matures on January 31, 2009.
Principal borrowings under our Term Loan are due and payable in quarterly installments of $0.9 million from March 31,
2007 through June 30, 2012 with the remaining balance of $325.8 million due on July 14, 2012.

NOTE 6 common stock
On May 12, 2006, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares
of the Company’s common stock from 40,000,000 to 150,000,000.
On June 6, 2006, the Company effected a two-for-one stock split (the “stock split”) through a stock dividend to stockholders of record as of May 23, 2006 of one share of our common stock for each share of common stock outstanding.
Earnings per share for all prior periods presented have been adjusted to reflect the stock split.
As of December 30, 2006, the total amount of Carter’s, Inc.’s authorized capital stock consisted of 150,000,000 shares
of common stock, $0.01 par value per share, and 100,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share. As of
December 30, 2006, 58,927,280 shares of common stock and no shares of preferred stock were outstanding.
During fiscal 2006, we granted 17,172 shares of common stock to our non-management board members. The fair market
value of our common stock at the time of issuance was $31.45. Accordingly, we recognized $540,000 in compensation
expense in fiscal 2006. We received no proceeds from the issuance of these shares.
During fiscal 2005, we issued 18,354 shares of our common stock to our non-management board members. The fair
market value of our common stock at the time of issuance was $22.88. Accordingly, we recognized $420,000 in
compensation expense in fiscal 2005. We received no proceeds from the issuance of these shares.
The issued and outstanding shares of common stock are validly issued, fully paid, and nonassessable. Holders of our
common stock are entitled to share equally, share for share, if dividends are declared on our common stock, whether
payable in cash, property, or our securities. The shares of common stock are not convertible and the holders thereof
have no preemptive or subscription rights to purchase any of our securities. Upon liquidation, dissolution, or winding
up of our Company, the holders of common stock are entitled to share equally, share for share, in our assets which are
legally available for distribution, after payment of all debts and other liabilities and subject to the prior rights of any
holders of any series of preferred stock then outstanding. Each outstanding share of common stock is entitled to one
vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. There is no cumulative voting. Except as otherwise required
by law or the certificate of incorporation, the holders of common stock vote together as a single class on all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders.
Our Board of Directors may issue preferred stock from time to time. Subject to the provisions of our certificate of
incorporation and limitations prescribed by law, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized to adopt resolutions to
issue the shares, to fix the number of shares, and to change the number of shares constituting any series and to
provide for or change the voting powers, designations, preferences and relative participating, optional or other special
rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, including dividend rights (including whether dividends are
cumulative), dividend rates, terms of redemption (including sinking fund provisions), redemption prices, conversion
rights, and liquidation preferences of the shares constituting any series of the preferred stock, in each case without
any further action or vote by the shareholders.

54

Carter’s, Inc. 2006 Annual Report

notes to consolidated financial statements

continued

NOTE 7 stock-based compensation
Under our Amended and Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), the compensation committee of our Board
of Directors may award incentive stock options (ISOs and non-ISOs), stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricted stock,
unrestricted stock, stock deliverable on a deferred basis, performance-based stock awards, and cash payments intended
to help defray the cost of awards. All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the stock split
discussed in Note 6 above.
On May 12, 2005, the Board of Directors implemented, and our stockholders approved an amendment to the Plan to
increase the number of shares available to be delivered under the Plan by 2,800,000 to 11,488,392, with no more than
1,260,000 of such additional shares able to be used for awards other than stock options and to reduce the number of
shares for which stock options may be granted to any individual or which can be subject to SARs granted to any individual in any calendar year from 8,000,000 to 2,000,000. As of December 30, 2006, there are 2,173,283 shares available
for grant under the Plan. The Plan makes provision for the treatment of awards upon termination of service or in the case
of a merger or similar corporate transaction. Participation in the Plan is limited to Directors and those key employees
selected by the compensation committee. The limit on shares available under the Plan, the individual limits, and other
award terms are subject to adjustment to reflect stock splits or stock dividends, combinations, and certain other events.
All stock options issued under the Plan expire no later than ten years from the date of grant. The Company believes
that the current level of authorized shares is sufficient to satisfy future option exercises.
There are currently three types of stock options outstanding under the Plan: basic, performance, and retained options.
Basic options issued prior to May 12, 2005 vest in equal annual installments over a five-year period. Basic options granted
on and subsequently to May 12, 2005 vest in equal annual installments over a four-year period. Performance options
vest upon the achievement of pre-determined performance criteria. Retained stock options are options that were outstanding prior to the Company’s 2001 Acquisition by Berkshire Partners LLC and became fully vested in connection
with the 2001 Acquisition.
In connection with the adoption and provisions of SFAS 123R, the Company reversed its deferred compensation
balance of $2,749,000 on January 1, 2006 related to restricted stock awards.
The adoption of SFAS 123R has resulted in additional pre-tax, share-based compensation expense (a component of
selling, general, and administrative expenses) in the amount of approximately $3.9 million related to stock options for
the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, than if the Company had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. The impact on net income for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 was a reduction of
approximately $2.4 million, or $0.04, on both basic and diluted earnings per share.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock-based compensation on stock options under the intrinsic
value method consistent with APB 25. Under this method, we recorded compensation expense equal to the difference
between the exercise price of the stock option and the fair market value of the underlying stock as of the date of the
option grant. Forfeitures on stock option awards with expense recorded in accordance with APB 25 were accounted for
as they occurred, rather than based on estimates of future forfeitures. There was no material impact or cumulative
effect adjustment required as a result of estimating the impact of future forfeitures on awards previously expensed in
accordance with APB 25. For disclosure purposes only, we also estimated the impact on our net income of applying
the fair value method of measuring compensation cost on stock options with the fair value of the Company’s common
stock. In our pro forma disclosure we accounted for forfeitures as they occurred, rather than based on estimates of
future forfeitures.
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The following table provides supplemental information for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005
as if stock-based compensation had been computed under SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148.
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands, except per share data

Net income, as reported
Add:
Stock-based employee compensation (under APB 25) included in
reported net income, net of related tax effects
Deduct:
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under the
fair value based method (under SFAS 123 and SFAS 148) for all awards,
net of related tax effects
Pro forma net income
Net income per common share:
Basic – as reported
Basic – pro forma
Diluted – as reported
Diluted – pro forma

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$47,202

$49,658

1,103

227

(2,952)
$45,353

(1,747)
$48,138

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

0.82
0.79
0.78
0.75

0.88
0.86
0.83
0.80

A summary of stock option activity under the Plan (in number of shares that may be purchased) is as follows for the
fiscal year ended December 30, 2006:
Basic stock options

Outstanding, December 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding, December 30, 2006
Exercisable, December 30, 2006

Basic
stock
options

Weightedaverage
exercise
price
per share

Weightedaverage
grantdate
fair value

4,844,128
198,800
(357,850)
(18,400)
–
4,666,678
3,668,738

$ 6.23
$33.18
$ 5.35
$31.64
$
–
$ 7.34
$ 4.31

$ 2.76
$15.09
$ 2.70
$12.88
$
–
$ 3.26
$ 1.87

During fiscal 2006, the Company granted 198,800 basic stock options. In connection with this grant of basic stock
options, the Company recognized approximately $520,000 in compensation expense during the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2006.
A summary of basic stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 30, 2006 is as follows:
Outstanding

Range of
exercise
prices

$ 3
$ 6
$13
$22
$31

56

–
–
–
–
–

$ 5
$ 7
$17
$27
$35

Weightedaverage
remaining
contractual
life

Number

3,333,008
275,950
595,920
254,200
207,600
4,666,678

4.77
6.71
7.33
8.62
9.11
5.61
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years
years
years
years
years
years

Exercisable

Weightedaverage
exercise
price

Weightedaverage
grant-date
fair value

Number

$ 3.14
$ 6.98
$14.81
$23.94
$33.46
$ 7.34

$ 1.29
$ 4.88
$ 6.66
$ 9.65
$15.03
$ 3.26

3,267,968
118,190
216,480
60,000
6,100
3,668,738

Weightedaverage
remaining
contractual
life

4.74
6.71
7.30
8.55
8.61
5.03

years
years
years
years
years
years

Weightedaverage
exercise
price

Weightedaverage
grant-date
fair value

$ 3.11
$ 6.98
$14.71
$23.82
$31.49
$ 4.31

$ 1.29
$ 4.88
$ 6.60
$ 9.52
$12.70
$ 1.87
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At December 30, 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of all outstanding basic options was approximately $86.5 million
and the aggregate intrinsic value of currently exercisable basic options was approximately $77.8 million. The intrinsic
value of basic options exercised during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 was approximately $9.1 million. At
December 30, 2006, the total estimated compensation cost related to non-vested basic options not yet recognized
was approximately $6.6 million with a weighted-average expense recognition period of 2.63 years.
Performance stock options

Outstanding, December 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding, December 30, 2006
Exercisable, December 30, 2006

Performance
stock
options

Weightedaverage
exercise
price
per share

Weightedaverage
grantdate
fair value

600,000
20,000
–
–
–
620,000
–

$25.06
$24.20
$
–
$
–
$
–
$25.04
$
–

$ 9.40
$11.19
$
–
$
–
$
–
$ 9.46
$
–

During the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, the Company granted 20,000 performance stock options. In connection with this grant of performance stock options, the Company recognized approximately $27,000 in compensation
expense during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006.
A summary of performance stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 30, 2006 is as follows:
Outstanding

Range of
exercise
prices

Number

Weightedaverage
remaining
contractual
life

$22 – $32

620,000

8.57 years

Exercisable

Weightedaverage
exercise
price

Weightedaverage
grant-date
fair value

Number

Weightedaverage
remaining
contractual
life

$25.04

$9.46

–

–

Weightedaverage
exercise
price

$ –

Weightedaverage
grant-date
fair value

$ –

At December 30, 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of all outstanding performance options was approximately
$1.4 million. No performance options are currently exercisable. At December 30, 2006, the total estimated compensation
cost related to non-vested performance options not yet recognized was approximately $3.9 million with a weightedaverage expense recognition period of 2.65 years.
Retained stock options
Retained
stock options

Outstanding, December 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding, December 30, 2006
Exercisable, December 30, 2006

1,708,270
–
(636,400)
–
–
1,071,870
1,071,870

Weightedaverage
exercise price
per share

$0.75
$ –
$0.75
$ –
$ –
$0.75
$0.75

The weighted-average contractual life of the 1,071,870 retained stock options outstanding and exercisable as of
December 30, 2006 is 4.63 years. At December 30, 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of all outstanding retained
options, which are all currently exercisable, was approximately $26.5 million. The intrinsic value of retained options
exercised during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 was approximately $17.5 million.
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The weighted-average contractual life for basic, performance, and retained stock options in aggregate as of
December 30, 2006 was approximately 5.73 years.
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing method with
the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants issued during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006:
For the fiscal years ended

Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected term (years)
Dividend yield

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

38.95%
4.69%
6
–

38.33%
4.06%
4
–

36.80%
3.66%
7
–

restricted stock
All restricted stock awards issued under the Plan vest based upon continued service. Restricted stock awards vest in
equal annual installments over a four-year period or cliff vest after a three- or four-year period. As noted above, the fair
value of restricted stock is determined based on the quoted closing price of our common stock on the date of grant.
The following table summarizes our restricted stock award activity during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006:
Restricted
stock

Outstanding, December 31, 2005
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Outstanding, December 30, 2006

134,270
107,000
(10,050)
(8,600)
222,620

During the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, the Company granted 107,000 shares of restricted stock to employees.
Compensation expense recorded during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006 for all restricted stock awards
totaled approximately $1.4 million. The total amount of estimated compensation expense related to unvested
restricted stock awards is approximately $4.4 million as of December 30, 2006.
Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to outstanding stock options and restricted stock awards are
expected to be recorded as follows:
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dollars in thousands

Basic
options

Performance
options

Restricted
stock

Total

2007
2008
2009
2010
Total

$2,624
2,512
1,333
145
$6,614

$1,530
1,530
741
90
$3,891

$1,605
1,576
1,100
150
$4,431

$ 5,759
5,618
3,174
385
$14,936
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NOTE 8 employee benefit plans
Effective December 30, 2006, we adopted SFAS 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” SFAS 158 requires an employer
to recognize the over-funded or under-funded status of a defined benefit post-retirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability on its balance sheet. SFAS 158 also requires an employer to recognize as a
component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that
arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to SFAS 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” or SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
than Pensions.” These costs are then subsequently recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost in the
statement of operations pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of SFAS 87 and SFAS 106.
Under a defined benefit plan frozen in 1991, we offer a comprehensive post-retirement medical plan to current
and certain future retirees and their spouses until they become eligible for Medicare or a Medicare Supplement
Plan. We also offer life insurance to current and certain future retirees. Employee contributions are required as a
condition of participation for both medical benefits and life insurance and our liabilities are net of these expected
employee contributions.
The following is a reconciliation of the Accumulated Post-Retirement Benefit Obligation (“APBO”) under this plan:
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

Benefit Obligation (APBO) at beginning of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid
APBO at end of period

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$11,755
106
542
(1,564)
(561)
$10,278

$11,486
149
605
40
(525)
$11,755

Our contribution for these post-retirement benefit obligations was $647,557 in fiscal 2006, $952,074 in fiscal 2005, and
$857,796 in fiscal 2004. We expect that our contribution for post-retirement benefit obligations each year from fiscal
2007 through fiscal 2015 will be approximately $700,000. We do not pre-fund this plan and as a result there are no
plan assets. The measurement date used to determine the post-retirement benefit obligations is as of the end of the
fiscal year.
In connection with the adoption of SFAS 158, we recorded a transition obligation of approximately $675,000, or
$429,000, net of tax, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in order to reflect the remaining
unrecognized unfunded accumulated projected benefit obligation for this plan in the accompanying balance sheet as
of December 30, 2006.
The funded status of the plan is reconciled to the accrued post-retirement benefit liability recognized primarily in other
long-term liabilities in the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets, as follows:

dollars in thousands

Funded status (unfunded APBO)
Unrecognized net loss from past experience different from that assumed and
from changes in assumptions
Accrued benefit cost

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$10,278

$11,755

–
$10,278

(2,202)
$ 9,553
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Post-retirement benefit obligations under the plan are measured on a discounted basis at an assumed discount rate. At
each measurement date, the discount rate was determined with consideration given to Moody’s Aa Corporate bond rate.
We believe Moody’s Aa Corporate bond index, which is typically comprised of bonds with longer maturities (typically
20 to 30 year maturities) is comparable to the timing of expected payments under the plan. The discount rates used
in determining the APBO were as follows:
December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

5.50%

5.50%

Discount rates

The components of post-retirement benefit expense charged to operations are as follows:
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

Service cost – benefits attributed to service during the period
Interest cost on accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation
Amortization of net actuarial loss
Total net periodic post-retirement benefit cost

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$106
542
–
$648

$149
605
37
$791

The discount rates used in determining the net periodic post-retirement benefit costs were as follows:
For the fiscal years ended

Discount rates

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

5.50%

5.75%

The effects on our plan of all future increases in health care costs are borne by employees; accordingly, increasing
medical costs are not expected to have any material effect on our future financial results.
We have an obligation under a defined benefit plan covering certain former officers and their spouses. At December 30,
2006 and December 31, 2005, the present value of the estimated remaining payments under this plan was approximately $1.2 million and is included in other current and long-term liabilities in the accompanying audited consolidated
balance sheets.
The Company acquired three defined benefit pension plans in connection with the Acquisition of OshKosh. Such
pension plans cover certain current and former employees. The fair value of plan assets in these plans as of the date of
Acquisition was approximately $50.9 million and the accumulated benefit obligation was approximately $55.5 million.
One of these defined benefit pension plans, with an unfunded accumulated benefit obligation of $3.8 million, was
terminated and distributions were made to participants in December 2005.
These pension plan assets are invested in group annuity contracts based on the Company’s overall strategic
investment direction as follows:

Equity investments
Intermediate term debt investments
Real estate investments
Total

Target
allocation
percentage

Expected
long-term
rate of
return

50%
42%
8%
100%

9 – 10%
5 – 7%
6 – 8%
8%

The long-term rate of return assumption considers historic returns adjusted for changes in overall economic conditions
that may affect future returns and a weighting of each investment class.
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The defined benefit pension plan assets were invested as follows as of the end of the year:

Equity investments
Intermediate term debt investments
Real estate investments
Total

2006

2005

52%
40%
8%
100%

56%
31%
13%
100%

Pension liabilities are measured on a discounted basis at an assumed discount rate. The discount rate used at
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 was determined with consideration given to Moody’s Aa Corporate
bond index, adjusted for the timing of expected plan distributions. The actuarial computations utilized the following
assumptions, using year-end measurement dates:
Benefit obligation

2006

Discount rate

2005

5.5%, 4.7%*

5%

* A discount rate of 4.7% was used for one of the remaining OshKosh defined benefit pension plans to reflect a planned distribution of all participant
benefits in fiscal 2007. As of December 30, 2006, this plan had total assets of $10.4 million.

Net periodic pension cost
Discount rate

2006

Expected long-term rate of return on assets

2005

5.5%

5%

8%

8%

The net periodic pension benefit included in the statement of operations was comprised of:

dollars in thousands

Fiscal 2006

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized actuarial loss (gain)
Net periodic pension benefit

$

For the period from
July 14, 2005 through
December 31, 2005

–
2,601
(4,139)
–
$(1,538)

$

112
1,470
(1,852)
–
$ (270)

A reconciliation of changes in the projected pension benefit obligation and plan assets is as follows:

dollars in thousands

Fiscal 2006

For the period from
July 14, 2005 through
December 31, 2005

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Projected benefit obligation at end of year

$52,758
–
2,601
(4,047)
(1,872)
$49,440

$55,523
112
1,470
811
(5,158)
$52,758

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Company contributions
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$52,464
6,010
–
(1,872)
$56,602

$50,920
2,618
4,084
(5,158)
$52,464

Funded status:
Funded status of plan
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost

$ 7,162
–
–
$ 7,162

$

(294)
(922)
–
$ (1,216)
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Amounts recognized in the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets:

dollars in thousands

Prepaid benefit cost
Accrued benefit liability

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$7,162
$
–

$ 1,138
$(2,354)

In connection with the adoption of SFAS 158, we recorded a transition asset of approximately $6.8 million, or $4.3 million,
net of tax, related to the OshKosh plans as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in order to
reflect the over-funded status of these plans.
The Company currently expects benefit payments for its defined benefit pension plans as follows for the next ten
fiscal years.
dollars in thousands
Fiscal year

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012 – 2016

$ 9,950
$ 950
$ 1,470
$ 1,260
$ 1,570
$13,180

The retirement benefits under these plans have been frozen as of December 31, 2005. The Company intends to
terminate one of the plans and distribute benefits to participants after receiving permission from the Internal Revenue
Service. The Company currently anticipates that the plan has sufficient assets to make distributions to all participants.
The following table summarizes the incremental effect of SFAS 158 on the accompanying audited consolidated balance
sheet as of December 30, 2006:

dollars in thousands

Before
application
of SFAS 158

Other assets
Total assets
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Total liabilities
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$
5,209
$1,117,508
$ 23,476
$ 123,455
$ 625,853
$
1,465
$ 491,655
$1,117,508

Adjustments

$5,683
$5,683
$ (482)
$2,329
$1,847
$3,836
$3,836
$5,683

After
application
of SFAS 158

$ 10,892
$1,123,191
$ 22,994
$ 125,784
$ 627,700
$
5,301
$ 495,491
$1,123,191

We also sponsor a defined contribution plan within the United States. The plan covers employees who are at least
21 years of age and have completed three months of service, during which at least 250 hours were served. The plan
provides for the option for employee contributions up to statutory limits, of which we match up to 4% of the employee
contributions, at a rate of 100% on the first 3% and 50% on the next 2%. Our expense for the defined contribution
plan totaled approximately $3,078,000 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, $2,029,000 for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005, and $1,761,000 for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005.
In connection with the Acquisition, we acquired a defined contribution plan covering certain OshKosh salaried and hourly
employees, whereby participants may contribute a percentage of compensation up to statutory limits. Our expenses
for this defined contribution plan totaled approximately $187,000 for the period from July 14, 2005 to December 31,
2005. Effective January 1, 2006, this plan was merged into our defined contribution plan described above.
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NOTE 9 income taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following:
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

Current tax provision (benefit):
Federal
State
Foreign
Total current provision
Deferred tax provision (benefit):
Federal
State
Total deferred provision (benefit)
Total provision

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$44,277
5,736
453
50,466

$26,226
4,402
(343)
30,285

$30,224
5,570
199
35,993

1,349
(847)
502
$50,968

(203)
583
380
$30,665

(2,800)
(343)
(3,143)
$32,850

Components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) were as follows:

dollars in thousands

Current deferred taxes:
Accounts receivable allowance
Inventory
Accrued liabilities
Deferred employee benefits
Other
Total current deferred taxes
Non-current deferred taxes:
Depreciation
Tradename and licensing agreements
Deferred employee benefits
Other
Total non-current deferred taxes

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$

6,159
4,806
9,368
2,422
(378)
$ 22,377

6,712
4,435
13,573
109
(920)
$ 23,909

$

$

(5,972)
(122,914)
2,404
698
$(125,784)

$

(6,497)
(125,510)
7,054
514
$(124,439)

The difference between our effective income tax rate and the federal statutory tax rate is reconciled below:
For the fiscal years ended

Statutory federal income tax rate
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit
U.S. tax on closure of foreign facilities
Foreign income, net of tax
Federal tax-exempt income
Other
Total

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

35.0%
2.3
–
–
(0.5)
0.1
36.9%

35.0%
4.2
0.8
(0.3)
(0.5)
0.2
39.4%

The portion of income (loss) before income taxes attributable to foreign income was approximately $235,000 for
the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, $(243,000) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, and $390,000
for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005.
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NOTE 10 lease commitments
Rent expense under operating leases was approximately $46,907,000 for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2006,
$40,864,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, and $24,416,000 for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005.
Minimum annual rental commitments under current noncancellable operating leases as of December 30, 2006
were as follows:

dollars in thousands
Fiscal year

Buildings,
primarily
retail stores

Transportation
equipment

Data
processing
equipment

Manufacturing
equipment

Total
noncancellable
leases

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
Thereafter
Total

$ 36,358
30,417
25,951
20,183
14,383
32,823
$160,115

$ 67
46
18
2
–
–
$133

$1,894
811
301
–
–
–
$3,006

$ 84
22
6
4
–
–
$116

$ 38,403
31,296
26,276
20,189
14,383
32,823
$163,370

We currently operate 376 leased retail stores located primarily in outlet and strip centers across the United States,
having an average size of approximately 4,800 square feet. Generally, leases have an average term of approximately
five years with additional five-year renewal options.
In addition, the Company leases the following facilities:

Location

Stockbridge, Georgia
Atlanta, Georgia
Griffin, Georgia
Shelton, Connecticut
New York, New York
New York, New York
New York, New York

Approximate
floor space in
square feet

505,000
102,000
11,000
42,000
16,000
19,000
21,000

Principal use

Distribution/warehousing
Executive offices/Carter’s design and merchandising
Information technology
Finance and retail store administration
Carter’s sales office
OshKosh’s sales offices/showroom
OshKosh’s design center

Lease
expiration
date

April
June
December
December
January
April
August

2010
2015
2007
2007
2015
2007
2008

Renewal
options

13 years
5 years
–
6 months
–
–
–

In accordance with SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” we review all of our leases to determine whether they
qualify as operating or capital leases. As of December 30, 2006, all of our leases are classified as operating. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the asset or current lease term. We account for
free rent periods and scheduled rent increases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Landlord allowances and
incentives are recorded as deferred rent and are amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the lease term.

NOTE 11 commitments and contingencies
We are subject to various federal, state, and local laws that govern activities or operations that may have adverse
environmental effects. Noncompliance with these laws and regulations can result in significant liabilities, penalties,
and costs. From time to time, our operations have resulted or may result in noncompliance with or liability pursuant
to environmental laws. Generally, compliance with environmental laws has not had a material impact on our operations, but there can be no assurance that future compliance with such laws will not have a material adverse effect on
our operations.
As of December 30, 2006, we have entered into various purchase order commitments with full-package suppliers for
merchandise for resale that approximates $168.3 million. We can cancel these arrangements, although in some
instances, we may be subject to a termination charge reflecting a percentage of work performed prior to cancellation.

64

Carter’s, Inc. 2006 Annual Report

notes to consolidated financial statements

continued

In May 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a $2.5 million performance-based bonus related to the
integration of OshKosh for the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. The integration bonus can be earned based upon
the achievement of predetermined financial and other goals from fiscal 2005 through the end of fiscal 2007. During fiscal
2006 and fiscal 2005, we recognized approximately $1,000,000 and $500,000, respectively of compensation expense
in connection with this integration bonus arrangement.

NOTE 12 other current liabilities
Other current liabilities consisted of the following:

dollars in thousands

Accrued income taxes
Accrued incentive compensation
Accrued workers’ compensation
Accrued purchase accounting reserves (see Note 16)
Accrued interest
Other current liabilities
Total

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$13,837
10,678
10,012
4,787
3,170
20,528
$63,012

$16,994
14,777
10,700
17,585
3,366
26,205
$89,627

Sales
returns
reserves

Excess and
obsolete
inventory
reserves

NOTE 13 valuation and qualifying accounts
Information regarding accounts receivable and inventory reserves is as follows:

dollars in thousands

Balance, January 3, 2004
Additions, charged to expense
Charges to reserve
Balance, January 1, 2005
Additions, charged to expense
Charges to reserve
Balance, December 31, 2005
Additions, charged to expense
Charges to reserve
Balance, December 30, 2006

Accounts
receivable
reserves

$ 2,363
3,520
(3,005)
2,878
4,833
(3,764)
3,947
4,468
(5,099)
$ 3,316

$

150
1,087
(1,087)
150
1,040
(1,040)
150
732
(732)
$ 150

$ 5,032
11,119
(6,267)
9,884
8,638
(10,222)
8,300
6,535
(8,935)
$ 5,900

NOTE 14 related party transactions
In January 2000, we issued a loan to Frederick J. Rowan, II, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, in the amount
of $4.3 million, the proceeds of which were used by Mr. Rowan to repay a previous loan from us in the amount of
$1.5 million. In connection with the 2001 Acquisition, we amended the terms of this loan. Neither the original loan nor
the amended loan was issued in connection with the purchase of our common stock. As amended, the $4.3 million loan
was payable in annual installments of $600,000 commencing on March 31, 2003, and thereafter on each anniversary
thereof until such principal amount and all accrued and unpaid interest thereon has been repaid (interest was payable
at the average rate payable by us under our former revolving credit facility). In August 2005, Mr. Rowan repaid the
entire outstanding balance of $2.4 million.
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NOTE 15 segment information
We report segment information in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information” which requires segment information to be disclosed based upon a “management
approach.” The management approach refers to the internal reporting that is used by management for making operating decisions and assessing the performance of our reportable segments.
Segment results include the direct costs of each segment and all other costs are allocated based upon detailed estimates and analysis of actual time and expenses incurred to support the operations of each segment or units produced
or sourced to support each segment’s revenue. Certain costs, including incentive compensation for certain employees,
plant closure costs, and various other general corporate costs that are not specifically allocable to our segments, are
included in other reconciling items below. Intersegment sales and transfers are recorded at cost and are treated as a
transfer of inventory. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2 “Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies” to the consolidated financial statements.
The table below presents certain segment information for the periods indicated:
For the fiscal years ended
dollars in thousands

December 30,
2006

% of
Total

December 31,
2005 (a)

% of
Total

January 1,
2005

% of
Total

Net sales:
Wholesale – Carter’s
Wholesale – OshKosh
Retail – Carter’s
Retail – OshKosh
Mass channel – Carter’s
Total net sales

$ 464,636
96,351
333,050
229,103
220,327
$1,343,467

34.6%
7.2%
24.8%
17.0%
16.4%
100.0%

$ 427,043
59,707
316,477
140,104
178,027
$1,121,358

38.1%
5.3%
28.2%
12.5%
15.9%
100.0%

$385,810
–
291,362
–
145,949
$823,121

46.9%
–
35.4%
–
17.7%
100.0%

% of
net sales

Operating income:
Wholesale – Carter’s
Wholesale – OshKosh
Retail – Carter’s
Retail – OshKosh
Mass channel – Carter’s
Mass channel – OshKosh (d)
Segment operating income
Other reconciling items
Total operating income

$ 89,137
11,204
57,333
18,809
30,797
2,428
209,708
(44,597)
$ 165,111

19.2%
11.6%
17.2%
8.2%
14.0%
–
15.6%
(3.3%)
12.3%

% of
net sales

$

80,566
666(b)
63,179
8,702(c)
21,588
801
175,502
(54,256)
$ 121,246

18.9%
1.1%
20.0%
6.2%
12.1%
–
15.7%
(4.8%)
10.8%

% of
net sales

$ 58,267
–
59,001
–
15,676
–
132,944
(31,919)
$101,025

15.1%
–
20.3%
–
10.7%
–
16.2%
(3.9%)
12.3%

(a)

Includes OshKosh results from the July 14, 2005 Acquisition date through December 31, 2005.

(b)

Includes a charge of $3.3 million related to a fair value step-up for wholesale inventory acquired from OshKosh.

(c)

Includes a charge of $10.6 million related to a fair value step-up for retail store inventory acquired from OshKosh.

(d)

OshKosh mass channel consists of a licensing agreement with Target Stores. Operating income consists of royalty income, net of related expenses.

In fiscal 2006, one customer in our wholesale segment accounted for 11% of consolidated net sales and one customer
in our mass channel segment accounted for 10% of consolidated net sales.
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The table below represents inventory, net, by segment:

dollars in thousands

Wholesale – Carter’s
Wholesale – OshKosh
Retail – Carter’s
Retail – OshKosh
Mass channel – Carter’s
Total

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$ 74,737
32,163
23,612
18,422
44,654
$193,588

$ 63,401
37,095
28,470
20,497
38,991
$188,454

$ 70,435
–
25,116
–
25,241
$120,792

Wholesale inventories include inventory produced and warehoused for the retail segment.
The following represents property, plant, and equipment, net, by geographic area:

dollars in thousands

United States
International
Total

December 30,
2006

$87,940
–
$87,940

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$78,902
556
$79,458

$51,055
2,132
$53,187

Our international operations consisted of sewing facilities and, accordingly, no revenues were recorded at these locations.
The following represents cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired by segment:

dollars in thousands

Wholesale – Carter’s
Wholesale – OshKosh
Retail – Carter’s
Retail – OshKosh
Mass channel – Carter’s
Total

December 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

January 1,
2005

$ 51,814
36,071
82,025
107,115
2,731
$279,756

$ 52,843
36,500
83,654
108,390
2,785
$284,172

$ 52,843
–
83,654
–
2,785
$139,282

NOTE 16 restructuring and closure costs
In connection with the Acquisition of OshKosh, management developed a plan to restructure and integrate the operations
of OshKosh. In accordance with EITF No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business
Combination,” liabilities were established for OshKosh severance, lease termination costs associated with the closure
of OshKosh’s 15 lifestyle stores and 14 outlet stores in fiscal 2005, one outlet store closure in fiscal 2006, contract
termination costs, and other exit costs. These liabilities also covered costs related to the closures of the OshKosh
Choloma, Honduras sewing facility and Liberty, Kentucky distribution center during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005
and the closure of the Uman, Mexico facility during the first quarter of fiscal 2006. We expect to pay the remaining
liabilities during fiscal 2007.
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The following table summarizes restructuring activity related to the Acquisition in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005:

dollars in thousands

Balance at July 14, 2005
Payments
Adjustments to cost in excess of fair value
of net assets acquired
Balance at December 31, 2005
Payments
Adjustments to cost in excess of fair value
of net assets acquired
Balance at December 30, 2006

Severance

Other
exit
costs

Lease
termination
costs

Contract
termination
costs

Total

$ 9,840
(2,304)

$ 2,075
(71)

$ 7,020
(468)

$2,000
(934)

$ 20,935
(3,777)

673
8,209
(5,294)

(78)
1,926
(1,377)

–
6,552
(4,999)

(168)
898
(399)

427
17,585
(12,069)

170
719

180
$ 1,733

(299)
$ 200

(729)
$ 4,787

(780)
$ 2,135

$

In May 2005, we decided to exit two Carter’s brand sewing facilities in Mexico. The total number of employees initially
terminated was approximately 1,124. Production at these facilities ceased on August 5, 2005. As a result of these closures, we have recorded total charges of $8.4 million including $4.6 million of severance charges, $1.3 million in lease
termination charges, $1.6 million of accelerated depreciation (included in cost of goods sold), $0.1 million of asset
impairment charges, and $0.8 million of other exit costs during fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2006, we have recorded total
charges of $91,000 including $74,000 in severance charges and $17,000 in other exit costs related to these closures.
Restructuring provisions recorded as a result of these closures are as follows and are included in other current liabilities
on the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets:

Severance and other termination benefits
Lease termination costs
Other exit costs
Total

December 31,
2005
reserves

Provisions

Payments

December 30,
2006
reserves

$ 370,000
813,000
150,000
$1,333,000

$74,000
–
17,000
$91,000

$ (266,000)
(771,000)
(167,000)
$(1,204,000)

$178,000
42,000
–
$220,000

On July 3, 2004, we closed our distribution facility located in Leola, Pennsylvania in order to consolidate shipping
operations with our remaining three distribution facilities located in Georgia. This closure was announced to affected
employees on June 1, 2004. Total employees terminated as of December 31, 2005 were 35. As a result of this closure,
we recorded and paid approximately $175,000 in severance and other exit costs.
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NOTE 17 unaudited quarterly financial data
Unaudited summarized financial data by quarter for the fiscal years ended December 30, 2006 and December 31,
2005 is presented in the table below:
dollars in thousands, except per share data

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

2006
Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Royalty income
Operating income
Net income
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

$296,447
108,143
82,966
7,179
32,275
15,785
0.27
0.26

$277,577
97,235
82,466
6,654
21,413
9,018
0.16
0.15

$391,977
147,220
93,496
7,782
61,506
34,977
0.60
0.57

$377,466
135,878
93,515
7,554
49,917
27,439
0.47
0.45

2005
Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Royalty income
Operating income
Net income
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

$206,207
75,765
51,996
3,523
27,292
13,849
0.24
0.23

$192,500
66,065
51,243
2,813
13,066
5,450
0.10
0.09

$372,158
128,661
89,303
7,208
45,057
10,578
0.18
0.17

$350,493
125,781
96,082
6,882
35,831
17,325
0.30
0.28

NOTE 18 subsequent events
facility closure
On February 15, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Company’s plan to close its White House,
Tennessee distribution center, which has been utilized to distribute the Company’s OshKosh brand products.
The Company continually evaluates opportunities to reduce its supply chain complexity and lower costs. At the end
of January 2007, it became more likely than not that the expected life of the White House distribution facility would
be significantly shortened. The Company has determined that OshKosh brand products can be effectively distributed
through its other distribution facilities and third-party logistics providers. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” under a “held and used” model, the asset became impaired
as of the end of January 2007 and the Company has written the asset down to its estimated recoverable fair value.
Accordingly, the adjusted asset value will be subject to accelerated depreciation over its remaining estimated useful
life. Distribution operations at the White House facility are expected to cease by the end of April 2007.
In conjunction with the plan to close this distribution center, the Company anticipates it will incur approximately
$5.8 million in cash expenses. Estimated charges consist of approximately $3.8 million of severance and other
employee related costs and $2.0 million of other costs to exit the facility. Additionally, the Company expects to
incur approximately $3.9 million of non-cash charges relating to accelerated depreciation and asset impairment.

stock repurchase program
On February 16, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program, pursuant to which the
Company is authorized to purchase up to $100 million of its outstanding common shares. Such repurchases may occur
from time to time in the open market, in negotiated transactions, or otherwise. This program has no time limit. The timing
and amount of any repurchases will be determined by the Company’s management, based on its evaluation of market
conditions, share price, and other factors.
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stock price, dividend information, related stockholder matters,
and equity compensation plan information
Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CRI. The last reported sale price per
share of our common stock on February 20, 2007 was $22.98. On that date there were approximately 35,060 holders
of record of our common stock.
On June 6, 2006, the Company effected a two-for-one stock split through a stock dividend to stockholders of record
as of May 23, 2006 of one share of our common stock for each share of common stock outstanding.
The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales prices per share of common stock as
reported by the New York Stock Exchange (all periods prior to June 6, 2006 have been adjusted for the stock split):
2006

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
2005

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

High

Low

$35.24
$34.93
$27.76
$30.18

$29.27
$24.10
$21.08
$25.36

High

Low

$20.60
$30.25
$32.83
$32.50

$16.23
$18.65
$26.42
$25.69

No purchases of our common stock were made by or on behalf of the Company or any affiliated purchaser during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

comparison of 38-month cumulative total return*
among Carter’s, Inc., the S&P 500 index, and the S&P Apparel Retail index
The graph below matches Carter’s, Inc.’s cumulative 38-month total shareholder return on common stock with the
cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 index and the S&P Apparel Retail index. The graph tracks the performance
of a $100 investment in our common stock and in each of the indexes (with the reinvestment of all dividends).

* $100 invested on October 24, 2003 in stock or on September 30, 2003 in index – including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending
December 30, 2006.
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dividends
Provisions in our Senior Credit Facility currently restrict the ability of our operating subsidiary, TWCC, from paying cash
dividends to our parent company, Carter’s, Inc., in excess of $15.0 million, which materially restricts Carter’s, Inc. from
paying cash dividends on our common stock. We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future but intend to retain future earnings, if any, for reinvestment in the future operation and expansion of
our business and related development activities. Any future decision to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of
our Board of Directors and will depend upon our financial condition, results of operations, terms of financing arrangements, capital requirements, and any other factors as our Board of Directors deems relevant.

recent sales of unregistered securities
Not applicable

equity compensation plan information
The following table provides information about our equity compensation plan as of our last fiscal year:
Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan category

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders (1)
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders
Total
(1)

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected
in first column)

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
warrants, and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants, and rights

6,358,549

$7.95

2,173,283

–
6,358,549

–
$7.95

–
2,173,283

Represents stock options that are outstanding or that are available for future issuance pursuant to the Carter’s, Inc.’s Amended and Restated 2003
Equity Incentive Plan.
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reconciliation of the company’s use of non-GAAP financial measures

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with GAAP; these financial statements appear on
pages 40 – 43 of this Annual Report. In addition to presenting results “as reported” under GAAP, results have been
provided “as adjusted,” which are non-GAAP financial measurements. Results “as adjusted” exclude the following
after-tax adjustments:
Fiscal year ended December 30, 2006
dollars in millions, except EPS

Income, as reported (GAAP)
Intangible amortization (a)
Stock-based compensation expense
Income, as adjusted

(b)

Operating
income

Net
income

Diluted
EPS

$165.1
4.8
4.0
$173.9

$87.2
3.0
2.5
$92.7

$1.42
0.05
0.04
$1.51

Fiscal year ended December 31, 2005
dollars in millions, except EPS

Income, as reported (GAAP)
Refinancing:
Tender premium (c)
Debt issuance costs (d)
Unamortized discount (e)
Acquisition charges:
Inventory step-up (f)
Intangible amortization
Facility closings:
Plant closure costs

(a)

(g)

Income, as adjusted

Operating
income

Net
income

Diluted
EPS

$121.2

$47.2

$0.78

–
–
–
–

8.5
3.4
0.3
12.2

0.14
0.06
0.00
0.20

13.9
2.2
16.1

8.5
1.3
9.8

0.14
0.02
0.16

8.4
24.5
$145.7

5.1
27.1
$74.3

0.08
0.44
$1.22

(a)

Amortization of OshKosh intangible assets, primarily licensing agreements.

(b)

Incremental stock-based compensation charges related to the adoption of SFAS 123R.

(c)

Tender premium to repurchase the Senior Subordinated Notes.

(d)

Non-cash charge to write off debt issuance costs associated with the Refinancing.

(e)

Non-cash charge related to the write-off of the unamortized discount on the Senior Subordinated Notes.

(f )

Fair value step-up of inventory acquired from OshKosh included in cost of goods sold.

(g)

Costs associated with the closure of two sewing facilities in Mexico, including accelerated depreciation charges of $1.6 million, pre-tax,
included in cost of goods sold.

The above adjustments have been made to our “as reported” results as these items are not part of the Company’s
normal business operations, and therefore are not indicative of trends and do not provide meaningful comparisons
to other periods. Accordingly, management excludes such items when evaluating financial performance and in determining financial incentives which are approved by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. These
non-GAAP financial measurements are not a substitute for GAAP measures of financial performance and it should not
be assumed that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items.
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corporate information

company address
Carter’s, Inc.
The Proscenium, 1170 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 900
Atlanta, Georgia 30309
Website: www.carters.com

The Company has filed with the New York Stock Exchange
the certification of our chief executive officer indicating
that the Company has complied with the New York Stock
Exchange’s corporate governance listing standards.

Carter’s on the internet
Annual Meeting of Stockholders
Friday, May 11, 2007 at 8:00 a.m.
The Proscenium, 1170 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 600
Atlanta, Georgia 30309

stock exchange listing
New York Stock Exchange (Trading Symbol “CRI”)

independent registered public accounting firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
300 Atlantic Street
Stamford, Connecticut 06901

legal counsel
Ropes & Gray LLP
One International Place
Boston, Massachusetts 02110

transfer agent
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
New York, New York 10038

investor relations
For further information on Carter’s, Inc., additional copies
of this Annual Report, Form 10-K, or other financial
information, contact:
Eric Martin
Vice President, Investor Relations
The Proscenium, 1170 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 900
Atlanta, Georgia 30309
404.745.2700

market share data
References to market share in this Annual Report reflect
our estimated share of a market expressed as a percentage
of total retail revenues, derived from NPD data issued
February 2007. Carter’s revised the NPD market definitions
to better reflect the nature of the childrenswear business.

securities and exchange commission and
new york stock exchange certifications
The Company has filed as exhibits to its 2006 Annual Report
on Form 10-K the certifications of our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer required to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The Company’s 2006 Annual Report, Form 10-K, and
other corporate information are available on the internet
at www.carters.com.

forward-looking statements
Statements contained in this Annual Report that relate to
the Company’s future performance, including, without limitation, statements with respect to the Company’s anticipated
results for fiscal 2007 or any other future period, or that
contain the words “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” or “plan,” or similar expressions, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such
statements are based on current expectations only, and are
subject to certain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions.
Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize,
or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual
results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated,
or projected. Factors that could cause actual results to
materially differ include a decrease in sales to, or the loss of
one or more of the Company’s key customers; the acceptance
of our products in the marketplace; deflationary pressures
on our prices; disruptions in foreign supply sources; negative
publicity; increased competition in the baby and young
children’s apparel market; our substantial leverage, which
increases our exposure to interest rate risk and could require
us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to repay
principal; changes in consumer preference and fashion trends;
a decrease in the overall level of consumer spending; the
impact of governmental regulations and environmental
risks applicable to the Company’s business; our ability to
adequately forecast demand, which could create significant
levels of excess inventory; our ability to identify new retail
store locations, and negotiate appropriate lease terms for
our retail stores; our ability to improve the performance of
our retail and OshKosh wholesale segments; our ability to
attract and retain key individuals within the organization;
failure to realize the revenue growth, cost savings and other
benefits that we expect from the Acquisition, which could
impact the carrying value of our intangible assets; and
seasonal fluctuations in the children’s apparel business.
Similar risks are described in our most recently filed Form 10-K
under the heading “Risk Factors” and “Statement Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements.” The Company undertakes
no obligation to publicly update or revise any forwardlooking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.
© 2007 Carter’s, Inc. All rights reserved. All brand names appearing in
this Annual Report are the registered trademarks of the Company’s
direct or indirect subsidiaries.
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Design: www.crittgraham.com

annual meeting

Carter’s is a $1.3 billion branded marketer of Carter’s and
OshKosh apparel for babies and young children. Selling on
average over 10 products for every child born in the U.S.,
Carter’s has the #1 share in the baby apparel market, and
OshKosh apparel for children ages 2-7 is known worldwide.
Consumers trust the quality of our baby apparel, sleepwear,
and playwear; products that are adorable, comfortable, easy
to care for, and very affordable.

a good year dollars in thousands, except EPS

2006(a)

2005(a)

as reported (b)
Net sales
Gross margin
Operating income
Operating margin
Net income
Diluted earnings per share
Net cash provided by operations

$1,343,467
36.4%
$ 165,111
12.3%
$
87,220
$
1.42
$
88,224

$1,121,358
35.3%
$ 121,246
10.8%
$ 47,202
$
0.78
$ 137,267

as adjusted (c)
Gross margin
Income before taxes
Operating margin
Net income
Diluted earnings per share

36.4%
$ 173,865
12.9%
$
92,694
$
1.51

36.7%
$ 145,708
13.0%
$ 74,305
$
1.22

Fiscal 2006 results include the operations of OshKosh for the entire fiscal year while fiscal 2005 results include the operations of
OshKosh for the period from July 14, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
(b) Results “as reported” are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).
(c) Results “as adjusted” are non-GAAP financial measurements. See page 72 for a reconciliation of results “as reported” to results
“as adjusted” excluding certain costs related to the acquisition of OshKosh, debt refinancing, and facility closures.
(a)

CARTER’S PRINCIPLES
six simple principles we work and live by:
tell it like it is
trust the power of fewer things
keep every promise
live by higher standards
think horizontally
rely on the best talent
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